
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT 

 

Regular Board Meeting 

3945	Rio	Road,	Carmel,	CA	 93923		

 
April 25, 2019 

Thursday 
9:00AM 

 

 
 
 
 

 

1



List of Common Acronyms

ACWA Assoc of California Water Agencies MG/L Milligrams per Liter
AF Acre Feet MGD Million Gallons per Day
APWA American Public Works Assoc MLSS Mixed Liquor Suspended Solids
AWWA American Water Works Assoc MLVSS Mixed Liquor Volatile Suspended Solids
BFE Base Flood Elevation (FEMA) MOU Memorandum of Understanding
BMP Best Management Practice MPN Most Probable Number (of coliform organisms)
BOD Biochemical Oxygen Demand MPWMD Monterey Peninsula Water Management District
BTU British Thermal Units MSL [Elevation above] Mean Sea Level
C&I Calcium & Ion NEC National Electric Code
Cal OES California Office of Emergency Services NELAC National Environmental Laboratory Accreditation Council
Cal/OSHA California Occupational Safety and Health Administration NEPA National Environmental Policy Act
CalPERS California Public Employees Retirement System NMFS National Marine Fisheries Serivce (NOAA)
CASA California Association of Sanitation Agencies NOAA National Oceanic & Atmospheric Administration
CAWD Carmel Area Wastewater District NPDES National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System
CCAMP Central Coast Ambient Monitoring Program NPS Non-Point Source [Pollution]
CCLEAN Central Coast Long Term Environmental Assessment Network NPSHa Net Positive Suction Head Available
CCTV Closed Circuit Television NPSHr Net Positive Suction Head Required
CECs Constituents of Emerging Concern OM&R Operations, Maintenance, and Replacement
CEQA California Environmental Quality Act OSHA Occupational Safety & Health Act
CFR Code of Federal Regulations PBC Pebble Beach Company
CIP Capital Improvement Project/Plan PBCSD Pebble Beach Community Services District
CL2 Chlorine PCB's Polychlorinated Biphenyls
CMMS Computerized Maintenance Mgmt Software PEHP Post Employment Health Plan
CMOM Capacity, Management, Operations &  Maintenance pH Hydrogen Ion Concentration (Potential of Hydrogen)
COD Chemical Oxygen Demand PLC Programmable Logic Controller
CPI Consumer Price Index POTW Publicly Owned Treatment Works
CRFREE Carmel River Floodplain Restoration & Environmental EnhancementPPM Parts per Million
CRWQCB Calif Regional Water Quality Control Board PS Point Source [Pollution]
CSDA California Special District Association PS Pump Station
CSO Combined Sewer Overflow PSI Pounds per Square Inch
CSS Combined Sewer System QA/QC Quality Assurance/Quality Control
CU FT Cubic Feet RAS Return Activated Sludge
CWA Clean Water Act (EPA) RFP Request for Proposals
CWEA California Water Environment Assoc RFQ Request for Qualifications
DAF Dissolved Air Flotation RMP Risk Management Program
DEG Degrees RO Reverse Osmosis
DEIS Draft Environmental Impact Statement (NEPA/EPA) RPM Revolutions per Minute
DHS Department of Health Services RWQCB Regional Water Quality Control Board
DO Dissolved Oxygen SAR Sodium Adsorption Ratio
DWF Dry Weather Flow SBS Sodium Bisulfite
EA Environmental Assessment (NEPA/EPA) SCADA Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition
EFT Electronic Funds Transfer SLR Sea Level Rise
EIS/EIR Environmental Impact Statement/Report SOR Standard Oxygen Requirement
ELAP Environmental Laboratory Accreditation Program SOUR Specific Oxygen Uptake Rate
EPA [U.S.] Environmental Protection Agency SRF State Revolving Loan Fund
ESMP Electronic Self-Monitoring Report SRT Solids Retention Time (same as MCRT)
F/M Food to Microorganism ratio SRV Sewer Relief Valve
FEB Flow Equalization Basin SS Suspended Solids (same as TSS)
FEMA Federal Emergency Management Agency SSMP Sewer System Management Plan
FOG Fats, Oils and Grease SSO Sanitary Sewer Overflow
GAL Gallon SVI Sludge Volume Index
GASB Government Accounting Standards Board SWRCB State Water Resources Control Board 
GPD Gallons per Day TDML Total Maximum Daily Load
HP Horsepower TMP Trans Membrane Pressure 
I/I Infiltration and Inflow TDS Total Dissolved Solids
IPR Indirect Potable Reuse TOC Total Organic Carbon
IRWUG Independent Reclaimed Water Users Group TS/TSS Total Suspended Sollids
IS/MND Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration UV Ultraviolet Treatment
kw Kilowatt  VFD Variable Frequency Drive
kwH Kilowatt hour VS Volatile Solids
LAFCO Local Agency Formation Commission VSS Volatile Suspended Solids
LAMP Local Area Management Plan WAS Waste Activated Sludge
lbs Pounds WDR Waste Discharge Requirements
LIMS Laboratory Information Management Software WEF Water Environment Federation
MCC Motor Control Center WPCF Water Pollution Control Federation
MCRT Mean Cell Retention Time WWTP Waste Water Treatment Plant
MF/RO Microfiltration/Reverse Osmosis

J:\Board Packets\2019\04-25-19 Regular Board Meeting\04-25-2019 Board Binder\02. List of Common Acronyms 02-12-19  
2



 
STAFF REPORT       
                 

 

   
To:     Board of Directors   

 

From:     Rachél Lather, Principal Engineer 

 

Subject:    Uniform Plumbing Ordinance 

    Standard Plans and Specifications Ordinance 

    Administrative Penalties Ordinance 

 

Date:    April 25, 2019 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors approve Ordinance No. 2019-01, adopting a new 
Uniform Plumbing Ordinance, Ordinance No. 2019-02, adopting new Standard Plans and 
Specifications, and Ordinance No. 2019-03, adopting a new Administrative Penalties Ordinance.   
 
DISCUSSION 

 
CAWD staff have been working with the Standard Plans and Specifications/Plumbing Ordinance 
Committee to update the District’s Standard Plans and Specifications and Uniform Plumbing 
Ordinance in order to be compliant with current State requirements and standard practices in 
sewage collections.  The Standard Plans and Specifications are needed to provide standards for 
owners, contractors, and engineers to implement the requirements of the Uniform Plumbing 
Ordinance for remodeling, change of use and new construction.  The Uniform Plumbing Ordinance 
establishes the basic plumbing requirements for sanitary sewers and pump stations within the 
District.  In order to establish a process to enforce any violation of the District’s Ordinances, the 
Administrative Penalties Ordinance is needed to be adopted.  This is required by the State Water 
Resources Control Board in order to demonstrate that the District has “Legal Authority” to enforce 
any violation of its sewer ordinances.   
 
In order to reduce inflow into the sewer system, a lateral replacement requirement has been 
included in the Ordinances.  This requires that upon change of use, remodel or sale of a property 
the existing lateral is video inspected to verify that it is in acceptable condition.  If not, the lateral 
will be required to be replaced or rehabilitated in order to meet or exceed the District’s 
requirements.  This type of ordinance has been implemented throughout the state by other Districts 
and Municipalities, including the Cities of Pacific Grove and Monterey.   

r 

3



Once the Ordinances are adopted, staff plan to implement outreach to the local realtors, the City 
of Carmel-by -the-Sea and Monterey County, the local Chambers of Commerce, local plumbers  
and our rate payers in order to educate them on the new requirement.  It is anticipated that 
enforcement of the lateral replacement requirement will be implemented on or before October 1, 
2019.  This will give staff five months to complete outreach efforts.   
 
The following items are planned to be completed between now and October 1, 2019: 
 

 Schedule presentation of our lateral replacement policy at meetings of the Monterey 
County Association of Realtors,  

 Schedule presentation of our lateral replacement policy at meetings of the Chamber of 
Commerce of Monterey Peninsula, Carmel and Carmel Valley, 

 Host one to two outreach meeting with local plumbers, contractors, house inspectors, and 
interested rate payers, 

 Send flyers to our customers, 
 Post information regarding the program in the local newspapers and on our website. 

 
 
FUNDING 

     
Funding is available in the 2018-2019 and 2019-2020 Collections Operations budgets for printing, 
advertising, copying, and mailing notices and flyers. 
 

 

 

4



Minutes of the CAWD Regular Board meeting held March 28, 2019 – 9:00 a.m. 

1 

 

  
CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT (CAWD)  

REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES  
March 28, 2019 

 
 

	
CALL	TO	ORDER	‐	ROLL	CALL	‐ The meeting was called to order at 9:00 a.m.				
	
Present:		 President: Ken White, Directors: Greg D’Ambrosio, Michael Rachel,  
	 Robert Siegfried and Charlotte Townsend 
 
Absent:		 None 
 
Others:	 Barbara Buikema, General Manager, Carmel Area Wastewater District (CAWD) 

 Rachel Lather, Principal Engineer, CAWD  
   Patrick Treanor, Plant Engineer, CAWD 
 Ed Waggoner, Operations Superintendent, CAWD 
 Chris Foley, Maintenance Superintendent, CAWD 
 Daryl Lauer, Collections Superintendent, CAWD 
 Domine Barringer, Administrative Assistant/Board Clerk, CAWD 
 Robert Wellington, Wellington Law Offices, CAWD District Legal Counsel 
 Allan Melkesian, Director, Clear Peak Development LLC 
   Wei Huang-DL Family Office, Chief Representative 
   Sandy Watts – Design Principal 
   Dick Gebhart, , Director, Pebble Beach Community Service District (PBCSD) 
   Mike Niccum, General Manager, PBCSD 
 
   

APPEARANCES,	ORDERS	OF	BUSINESS	&	ANNOUNCEMENTS		
1.		 Appearances/Public	Comments:		
 

President White opened the meeting for public comment at 9:17 am and asked if the 
anyone would like to speak on any agenda item.  
	

There	was	no	public	comment.	
	

2.		 Agenda	Changes:	
	 	

The Board Secretary requested an “agenda change” on item number twenty-five concerning 
the  PBCSD Meeting on April 6th,  stating President White is scheduled to attend. 

There	were	no	other	agenda	changes.	

5



Minutes of the CAWD Regular Board meeting held March 28, 2019 – 9:00 a.m. 

2 

 

	
CONSENT	CALENDAR:	APPROVAL	OF	MINUTES,	FINANCIAL	STATEMENTS	
AND	MONTHLY	REPORTS		

Board	Action	
Following	a	motion	made	by	Director	D’Ambrosio	and	seconded	by	Director	Siegfried,	the	Board	
unanimously	approved	the	Regular	Meeting	Minutes	of	February	28th,	2019,	and	enacted	the	
following	Consent	Calendar	items:	
	
3.  Approve Regular Board Meeting Minutes on February 28,2019                                                   
	
4.  Receive and Accept Bank Statement Review by Hayashi Wayland –   
       January & February 2019 
	
5.  Receive and Accept Schedule of Cash Receipts and Disbursements –  February 2019      
 
6.  Approve Register of Disbursements - Carmel Area Wastewater District – February 2019	 
	
7.  Approve Register of Disbursements – CAWD/PBCSD Reclamation Project  – February  2019	 

Director Rachel requested comments on the $90K expenditure for California 
American Water (CALAM).  Ms. Buikema stated it was a one-time purchase of 
potable water for Reclamation this year.  Ms. Buikema said that although the 
reservoir did get full, as a safety measure, PBCSD purchased water from 
CALAM.   

	
8.  Receive and Accept Financial Statements and Supplementary Schedules – February 2019	 
	
9.  Receive and Accept Collection System Superintendent’s report – for February 2019        

Director D’Ambrosio requested a color change on Collections Map from magenta to 
another color. Director Siegfried would like the map to be printed in “landscape”. 
 
Director D’Ambrosio asked for information concerning the power loss and staff rotation 
of 24 hour shifts during storm events. 
 
Director D’Ambrosio also wanted to know what the  standard protocol is for the entire 
department to ramp up for an emergency response?   Mr. Lauer spoke about cross 
training and on call backup procedures which are in place. During the latest storm surge  
the Carmel area was hit by the south winds twice.  There are continuing efforts to train 
employees and this storm presented staff with the opportunity to put into practice what 
they had learned. Things went very smoothly.  
 
Director D’Ambrosio  then asked Mr. Foley if there is a similar protocol at the Plant? Mr. 
Foley confirmed that there is a ramp up of communication when a storm is coming.   
There is coordination between Collections and the Plant. During storm events there is  
on-call staff representing Treatment, Collections, and Maintenance.  The staff must be 

6



Minutes of the CAWD Regular Board meeting held March 28, 2019 – 9:00 a.m. 

3 

 

available and be aware of the storm.  
 
Director D’Ambrosio also asked if there was someone at  the Plant or if monitoring is 
done from home?  Mr. Foley explained there is the same protocol at the Plant.   When 
running the generator, we go ahead and staff the Plant. During that storm the Plant was 
getting power outages where the plant was going on and off and a conscious decision 
was made to place the Plant on a stand by generator to be less susceptible to damage 
from power outages.  As the winds died down CAWD shifted back to PG&E. 
 
Mr. Foley said that there is communication before an event, planning for the event to 
ensure that there is available staff to follow the  protocols in place.  
 
President White asked a question concerning  page 48, the chart about an odor 
complaint and if  it involved a holding tank?  Mr. Lauer replied that there was injection 
pump located by the house. It is a 50-gallon injector tank, but it had not been used for six 
or seven months and water needed to be run through it.  

                                                            
    
10. Receive and Accept Safety And Regulatory Compliance Report- February 2019       

            	
11. Receive and Accept Treatment Facility Operations Report –Dec 2018, Jan & Feb 2019									 
	
12. Receive and Accept Laboratory/Environmental Compliance Report –February  2019   

Director Siegfried requested that the list of abbreviations and acronyms be agendized at 
the next meeting  and that the Board set a protocol on abbreviations and acronyms that 
appear in communication to the Board. President White and Director Townsends 
concurred. 

 
13. Receive and Accept Capital Projects Report/Implementation Plan– February 2019  
	
14. Receive and Accept Plant Operations Report – February 2019     
	
15. Receive and Accept Maintenance Projects Report – February 2019    
         	
16. Receive Principal Engineer Monthly Report General Engineering –February 2019  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7



Minutes of the CAWD Regular Board meeting held March 28, 2019 – 9:00 a.m. 

4 

 

ACTION	ITEMS	BEFORE	THE	BOARD		
Action	Items	consist	of	business	which	requires	a	vote	by	the	Board.	These	items	are	acted	upon	in	
the	following	sequence:	(1)	Staff	Report	(2)	Board	Questions	to	Staff	(3)	Public	Comments,	and	(4)	
Board	Discussion	and	Action.		
	
 
RESOLUTIONS/ORDINANCES	
17.	Resolution	No.	2019‐012; A Resolution Authorizing Adopting An Amendment to Hatton 
Canyon Engineering Services Contract for An Amount Not To Exceed $15,865 To MNS  
Engineers to Provide A Vegetation Restoration Plan For Permitting Purposes and To Ratify  
The Actions of The General Manager To Sign And Execute Contract – Report	 by  Principal	
Engineer,	Rachel	Lather 

	
 Ms. Lather stated that this is a resolution adopting an amendment to the Hatton Canyon 
engineering services contract as we approach getting the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) documents and the permits together in order to be awarded a grant 
from The Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA). CAWD found out that the 
Regional Water Board Control Board wanted a planting plan prior to giving CAWD a 
permit. This is not a common occurrence so additional services had to be added to meet 
the requirement.   

 
  Director D’Ambrosio asked a question on the title heading; “optional task to expand and 
revise restoration plan”.  Does this cover the road way, the pipe and anything offsite? Ms. 
Lather  stated the optional task was asked for a proposal for two different grants one is 
for the road restoration, which is $300K and the other grant is for the pipeline.  Ms. 
Lather wanted to ensure that CAWD was prepared for both in the event the road had to 
be done before the pipeline.  

 
     President White asked if this would have to go out to bid? Ms. Lather said yes 

 
Board	Action	

Following	a	motion	made	by	Director	Rachel	and	seconded	by	Director	Townsend,	the	Board	
unanimously	adopted	Resolution	No.	2019‐12.	

   
	
18.	Resolution	No.	2019‐13; A Resolution Authorizing  Invitation To BID For Sewage Lift  
Station Control Panel Upgrades -Programmable Logic Control Equipment‐ Report	by	Principal	
Engineer,	Rachel	Lather 
	

 This is a project to update the Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) 
program. Ms. Lather  has been working with Mr. Foley and Mr. Lauer to complete the 
project, as well as working  in conjunction with a consultant. This consultant is the same 
engineer that worked on the Treatment Plant. The plans and specification are available 
for review.  Director Rachel asked if the upcoming budget of $600K is allocated for this 
project. Currently there is $350K for procuring this which is not inclusive of installation?  
Ms. Lather agreed.  

8



Minutes of the CAWD Regular Board meeting held March 28, 2019 – 9:00 a.m. 

5 

 

 Mr. Foley indicated that there are several components to this process. The design was 
provided by Frisch Engineering, which is the same engineering firm that Pebble Beach  
Community Service District is using for their lift station and pump station upgrade. 
Frisch is providing  the specs and design for the Programmable Logic Controller (PLC) 
panels.  Mr. Lauer is working  with Comcast on the communication component 
upgrading the old copper phone lines.  This encompasses all the hardware with new 
panels and new PLC’s.  The next phase will be installing it and the final step is 
programming and integrating into the SCADA system.  

 
  Director Rachel stated there are seven lift stations and how many PLC’s in total will that 
be?  Mr. Foley stated that each lift station has its own independent PLC and they all 
communicate back to the master PLC at the Plant and that ties into the SCADA system.   

 
 Director Rachel asked if the inputs from the PLC’s come from various sensors? Mr. Foley 
confirmed that out at the stations there are two pumps and all the inputs are going into 
the local PLC for the two pumps and there is a local display with a status of the alarms 
and pumps. Simultaneously the PLC monitors the wet well level and instructs pumps 
when to turn on, controls the station’s alarming, and provides pump run times, status 
and so forth.  

 
 Director Siegfried asked if all that data is logged? Mr. Foley answered in the affirmative. 
Not only do the PLC’s talk back to the master PLC it also monitors the run times and 
alarms. Historical data can also be pulled.  As well there is a redundant system with 
cellular backup that logs all runtimes and alarm data pulses. 
 
Director D’Ambrosio said that at the budget committee review level, they felt it would be 
better to consolidate the process at the stations.  Mr. Foley stated that the product as a 
whole will have everything standardized and all the panels will match, and economies of 
scale will be achieved.  This standardization will assist with bidding and trouble 
shooting. In addition, this standardization will also assist in working with Pebble Beach 
Community Service District in trouble shooting problems or to assist if there is a need 
for emergency spare parts.  
 
Director Rachel asked Mr. Foley that he had mentioned a master PLC and he wanted to 
know if  it will have enough input capacity for anything in the foreseeable future? Mr. 
Foley stated yes, the master PLC will ship next week. It has a dual function and will 
replace the existing master PLC and is one platform up from the ones in the field. There 
is enough space and speed to add capacity. 

	

	

	

	

	

9



Minutes of the CAWD Regular Board meeting held March 28, 2019 – 9:00 a.m. 

6 

 

Board	Action	

Following	a	motion	made	by	Director	Siegfried	and	seconded	by	Director	Ambrosio,	the	
Board	unanimously	adopted	Resolution	No.	2019‐13.	
 
 

OTHER	ITEMS	BEFORE	THE	BOARD	
	
19.	Preliminary 2019-20 Budget- Report By Barbara Buikema, General Manager	
	

Ms. Buikema introduced the preliminary budget for 2019-20 and said the process has 
been streamlined. The Budget in Brief is the streamlined version. This year the budget is 
projected to be $13M in total revenues.  This includes user fees of $8M, interest income, 
reimbursement from Reclamation and Pebble Beach Community Service District 
(PBCSD), and a projected reserve contribution of $800K. This budget continues the path 
initiated over the last five to six years to position the District for the future. It plans for 
rehabilitation at both the Treatment facility and in the Collection system over the next 
15 years and begins to address the challenge of sea level rise.  This budget is attempting 
to address these three items through a combination of tight fiscal management and 
efficient project scheduling.  We believe that if we manage well we can continue our 
strategy of “pay-as-you-go” for the next 15 years. 

 
 President White commented that the Budget  Committee spent time on the concept that 
the number one priority is Phase II.  PBCSD also provided input, during the budget 
committee’s review.  Director D’Ambrosio stated that there were some good comments 
from the PBCSDs Finance Division.  Director D’Ambrosio thanked Mr. Niccum for his 
input.  

 
 Director D’Ambrosio commented on pages iii-iv of the General Manager’s Budget letter 
regarding “Making Significant Capital Investment in the District’s Infrastructure”  is a 
good crisp  description of our mission, which might be considered as a comment in the 
quarterly report or Newsletter. On page two, under Key Deliverables in the “Budget-in-
Brief” section, important information for the public is summarized. 

 
Director Siegfried provided general comments about the budget process.  He said that 
the budget is an “iterative process” and that he lacks the technical capability of 
providing a “thumbs up or down” on anyone’s proposal.  He tries to compare the 
operations budget to past budgets, and to screen the purchases to see if they are meant 
for conveniences or solid operations.  

   
 Director Siegfried stated that there has been some comments on the CAWD rates and 
“what is  required to run this place as a top-class operation”.  This is a proper topic for a 
Board study session prior to the next budget session. Staff has presented “where they 
would like to go” but he would like to see how this fits into the Board vision.  Director 
D’Ambrosio would like to see a session such as this this in the early Fall, which  would 
cover the staff and their preparation process and the Boards review.   

10



Minutes of the CAWD Regular Board meeting held March 28, 2019 – 9:00 a.m. 

7 

 

 
  Director Townsend commented that the District’s ability to fund projects with cash is 

impressive.  Not many organizations can do this.  Also, Director Townsend stated that 
projecting far into the future is “an exercise in futility”.  People may not do the same 
things with waste water in five to ten years. CAWD is not alone on this journey and it is 
important to be flexible.  

 
  Director D’Ambrosio stated there have been robust discussions about CAWD’s rate 
adjustments and options.  

 
 Director Rachel moved from the preliminary budget to the rate model.  There has been a 
residential rate increase of 7.55%.  His questioned is the real net – net effect of that 
increase.  Fixed costs go up every year and if nothing is done there is still costs of living, 
CALPERS, pensions and other elements that will cause an increase across the board. 
Perhaps to let the public know that just to operate seven days a week, 24 hours a day 
comes with a standard basic cost.  
 
 Mr. Niccum commented that the Board’s fiduciary responsibility is to ensure taxpayer’s 
money is being spent fairly or efficiently for services. With respect to the Treatment 
Plant and Reclamation, PBCSD provides a 3rd party review, for the most part looking to 
make sure it is being spent well and that helps with your fiduciary overview. 
 
President White thanked the Budget Committee for the thorough process they used.  

 
 

Board	Action	

Following	a	motion	made	by	President	White	to	approve	the	Preliminary	budget	and	
seconded	by	Director	Rachel,	the	Board	unanimously	approved	Preliminary	Budget.	
	
	

20. Preliminary 2019-20 Rate Model - Report	by	Barbara	Buikema,	General	Manager 
 

Ms. Buikema said that the rate model builds on the Preliminary Budget just 
passed. CAWD needs to approve the preliminary rate model because 
Proposition 218 requires forty-five days for public comment. Ms. Buikema 
recommended the 7.55% increase.  CAWD takes in about $1.7M in property tax 
and $1.6M in capital contributions. The combined total is just over $3M a year.  
When you take into consideration what needs to be accomplished at the 
Treatment plant, Collections, and for sea level rise this is the foundation we 
must build upon. The user fee revenues that come in cover the O&M budget. 
The capital component is critical to CAWD’s future.  Ms. Buikema 
acknowledged Director Townsend’s comments about planning for the future 
but CAWD’s must have a plan to move toward the future. The Coastal 
Commission is requiring a plan. The Treatment plant is well on its way to being 

11



Minutes of the CAWD Regular Board meeting held March 28, 2019 – 9:00 a.m. 

8 

 

rehabilitated and it must be maintained.  The Collection System has challenges 
that need to be addressed.  Taking in the $3M will ensure the sustainability of 
this District and supports the 7.55% rate increase.  Compared with rate 
increases over the last six years, this  rate model offers a slight decrease in the 
rate of cost escalation. 	
 
Director Siegfried followed up on Mr. Niccum’ s comments.  He was looking at 
the Consumer Price Index (CPI) listings and questioned the use of the Bay area 
was the appropriate comparable.  For those people in our area who depend on 
social security checks that perhaps the National CPI is more representative, or 
perhaps we should consider a blend of national CPI and the Bay area CPI.  
 
He asked what would the residential rate be if we covered all of our costs? Ms. 
Buikema stated it would be around an increase of 20%. 
 

	
Board	Action	

Following	a	motion	made	by	Director	D’Ambrosio	and	seconded	by	Director	Siegfried,	the	
Board	unanimously	adopted	rate	model.		
	

INFORMATION/DISCUSSION	ITEMS	

	
21.	PBCSD	02‐22‐19	Regular	Board	Meeting	‐	Report	By	Barbara	Buikema,	General	Manager  

 
The	report	was	informational	only	–	no	action	required.	

 
22.	Pension Committee Meeting 03-13-19 –Report	By	Barbara	Buikema,	General	Manager		

	
The	report	was	informational	only	–	no	action	required.	

	
23.	Update on Mr. Larsen’s connection In Carmel Highlands 
 

Mr. Lauer reported that CAWD has not received any comments from Mr. Larsen.  
Ms. Lather is continuing to work with annexations. Ms. Buikema stated that LAFCO 
prefers blocks of annexation over a piecemeal approach.   
 
Director Rachel asked if the County, through the Local Area Management Plan (LAMP), 
is exerting pressure on these entities (people with septic systems) to get off their 
systems and use sewer? Ms. Buikema stated, yes they are but it is a complex issue. For 
example, Carmel Valley Manor is trucking their effluent to CAWD when required and 
they would like to connect but there are people out in Carmel Valley who are 
concerned that sewer connections represent potential growth.  

12



Minutes of the CAWD Regular Board meeting held March 28, 2019 – 9:00 a.m. 

9 

 

 
Director Rachel asked what would be the annual cost to be on a septic system and in 
view of maintenance and replacement?  Mr. Lauer stated that LAMP is requiring to put 
in locally advanced treatment plants, with SCADA and monitoring, and sampling at a 
cost of $60K to $80K.   
 
Director Rachel asked for specifics on how much this is in comparison to the rate 
model?  
 
Ms. Buikema stated the costs of placing a septic tank in the ground is probably $20K to 
$30K. It would cost $2k annually with a 20-year life expectancy with septic. Director 
Rachel stated that it has to be beneficial to be on a sewer system. Ms. Buikema stated it 
is and the additional benefit is that Mr. Lauer takes care of you if you hook up to CAWD. 
Ms. Buikema stated the costs vary and depend on the type of soil, location of the house 
to the street, and other variables. Director D’Ambrosio stated then there are the costs 
of pumping and cleaning.  
 

	
 STAFF	&	BOARD	MEMBER	REPORTS	
Staff	Reports	include	items	for	which	verbal	reports/presentation	will	be	provided.	If	a	specific	
presentation	is	planned,	it	will	be	listed	and	summary	information	may	be	included	with	the	
Agenda.	Brief	oral	reports	may	be	provided	for	items	arising	after	the	Agenda	preparation.	The	
Board	may	wish	to	ask	questions	or	discuss	a	staff	report,	but	no	action	is	appropriate	other	than	
referral	to	staff,	or	request	that	a	matter	be	set	as	a	future	Agenda	Item.	
	
24.	General Manager’s Report -- Oral	Report	by	Barbara	Buikema,	General	Manager		 										 	

 Update on SLR Committee	
Ms. Buikema  said there will be a sea level rise (SLR) meeting on April 9th.   Staff met with the 
Coastal Commission staff in Santa Cruz last Friday and felt the meeting was generally positive. 
CAWD’s Coastal consultant, Susan McCabe, is advising the District to engage a land use attorney 
with experience in coastal issues.  The Santa Cruz office indicated they do not have a specific 
time line for permit issuance and is willing to work with CAWD. A permit is needed for Phase II 
and CAWD cannot proceed until this issue is resolved.  
	

 Vacation Schedule 	
Ms. Buikema will be on vacation next week and Mr. Foley will be the acting General Manager. 
 
Ms. Buikema wanted to add that she attended a meeting with California Coastal Trail group.  
The trail will run from Rancho Canada on down the coast .  She let the group know that CAWD 
has a bridge. Two of group members came over to see the bridge. The Coastal Trail is moving 
forward and perhaps a tributary path could come through and the causeway could be walkable 
under the highway. Ms. Buikema stated that we should encourage our community 
commitment. 
 
Director Townsend stated Sam Farr wants a trail all the way from Monterey to Point Lobos and 
CAWD has the only bridge and he is still interested. 
 
Director Siegfried attended a Water Reuse Conference and discussed the items of interest to 

13



Minutes of the CAWD Regular Board meeting held March 28, 2019 – 9:00 a.m. 

10 

 

CAWD.  One was that a new plant was built in the middle of a residential neighborhood. The 
plant uses ultra-filtration and reverse osmosis.  They are pulling water out of a river and treating 
it  has resulted in a plant with community space and gardens.  
 
There was  presentation on ceramic membrane technology by Purifics Water Inc.  One 
presentation prompted Director Siegfried to send an email to the Santa Clara Valley Water 
District Board of Directors.  A  response came back  thanking anyone for communicating with 
the Board of Directors.  Director Siegfried requested that CAWD consider the same type of 
customer response commitment and that all communication be routed through Board. 
 
Director D’Ambrosio stated as a point of information,  he is a Board member of  Friends of 
Mission Trail and a water shed study was just completed by Dudek Engineering.  CAWD 
should get a copy because  as a point of interest, there are three easements on the preserve of 
CAWD’s property. This group is also working with Fire and Police Departments to remove 
invasive species and  this group also has a contract for fire fuel abatement. Director 
D’Ambrosio discussed with Mr. Lauer the need to have a protocol that they chip everything.  
Mr. Lauer stated that CAWD is chipping as a protocol.  
 
 

OTHER	ITEMS	BEFORE	THE	BOARD	
Comments regarding the CAWD letter to Gavilan College – President White stated 
that the Board may want to look at the Gavilan letter Ms. Buikema has drafted after 
the meeting regarding Gavilan College to start water/waste water training program.  
President White thanked Mr. Waggoner for his comments at the Boards last meeting 
on education on waste water treatment in this area and would like an update after 
Mr. Waggoner receives a response from Gavilan College. President White stated the 
letter has been written and Ms. Buikema also suggested that CAWD’s facility could be 
used as a classroom.  

	
25.	Announcements On Subjects Of Interest To The Board Made By Members Of The Board  
or Staff ‐ Oral reports or announcements from Board President, Directors or staff concerning  their 
activities and/or meetings or conferences attended. 

	
PBCSD	Board	Public	Meeting	Notice	&	Agenda–The next PBCSD meetings are scheduled for: 
Friday, March 29, 2019 at 9:30a.m.  Director	Townsend	is	scheduled	to	attend.			
Friday, April 26, 2019 at 9:30a.m.  Director	White	is	scheduled	to	attend.		 
 
	
Reclamation	Management	Committee	Meeting –  The next RMC meeting is scheduled for:  
Wednesday, May 8, 2019 at 9:30 a.m.  Director	Townsend	and	Director	White	are	scheduled	to	attend.			
	
 

Special	Districts	Association	of	Monterey	County–The next SDA meeting is scheduled for: 
Tuesday, April 16, 2019 at 6:00 pm.  Director	Townsend	is	scheduled	to	attend. 
 

	

14



Minutes of the CAWD Regular Board meeting held March 28, 2019 – 9:00 a.m. 

11 

 

	
	
	
	
26.	 CLOSED	SESSION	
No closed session was scheduled or held. 
 
27.	 ADJOURNMENT	
There	being	no	further	business	to	come	before	the	Board,	the	President	adjourned	the	meeting	at	
10:04	a.m.	The	next	regular	meeting	will	be	held	at	9:00a.m.,	Thursday,	April	25,	2019	or	an	
alternate	acceptable	date,	in	the	Board	Room	of	the	District	Office,	3945	Rio	Road,	Carmel,	CA	
93923.	 
	
	
	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 Respectfully	Submitted:	 	
	
	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 __________________________________________________	

Domine	Barringer,	Board	Secretary	

	

APPROVED:	
	
	
________________________________________________	
Ken	White,	Board	President	

15



16



17



18

barringer
Highlight



19



20

barringer
Highlight



21

barringer
Highlight



22

barringer
Highlight



23

barringer
Highlight



24

barringer
Highlight



25

barringer
Highlight



26

barringer
Highlight



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



 
  

 

STAFF REPORT     
 

TO:    Board of Directors 

 

FROM:  Daryl Lauer, Collection Superintendent 

 

DATE:            April 25, 2019   
         
SUBJECT:  Monthly Report – March 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Receive Report‐ Informational only; no action required.  

 

             

Permits Issued 

 

Sewer Lateral Permits issued in March    ….....................                                                        9 

 

Total Fees.......................................................................................................  $ 990.00 

 

 

Maintenance  

 

Attached is a map of the locations cleaned in past three months. There were 1,876 feet 

Closed Circuit Television (CCTV) sewer line inspections during the month of March.   

 

 

Cleaning period  Footage Cleaned  Percentage Cleaned  Size of Pipe Cleaned 

January  55,165 ft.  13.41%  6 – 12 inches 

February  44,081 ft.  10.72%  6 – 12 inches 

March  32,789 ft.  7.97%  6 – 12 inches 

 

 

 

 

52



 
  

Construction Activities 

 

Staff was notified about a manhole frame and lid that had sunk under surface grade at 

the intersection of Ocean Ave. and Forest Rd. The manhole frame was installed by a 

contractor during a recent Carmel‐By‐The‐Sea (CBTS) pavement project. It was 

determined that the mortar used to raise the appurtenance cover crumbled, causing the 

settling. Staff replaced the entire frame and lid since the settling caused damage to the 

previous frame.  

 

During a recent CCTV inspection, a root blockage was found at the end of line segment 

Q642‐Q6106. After staff removed the root blockage, a large hole was discovered at the 

end of the line. A point repair was made to restore the integrity of the pipeline.  

 

General Comments 

 

Staff vacuumed out all the CBTS interceptors and one storm drain basin, removing a 

total of 25.5 tons of debris. Staff also vacuumed out the wet wells at Highlands, 

Hacienda, Bay & Scenic, and Monte Verde pump stations. 

 

 

Service calls responded to by crew 

 

Date  Time  Callout  Resolution 

3/5/19  12:15 AM  Highlands Pump Station Power 

Fail 

Staff on standby till PG&E fixed 

broken power pole. 

3/13/19  6:53 PM  Mission Alarm, Hacienda 

Pump Station Pump Failure 

Breaker reset, obstruction cleared, 

returned to service. 

3/13/19  10:54 PM  Mission Alarm, Hacienda 

Pump Station Pump Failure  

Pump removed from service, pump 

de‐ragging performed following 

morning. 

3/16/19  12:39 PM  Lateral Overflow  Called by Police Department 

regarding lateral spill, area 

vacuumed, owner advised to call 

plumber 

3/17/19  6:39 PM  Mission Alarm, Hacienda 

Pump Station Pump Failure 

Pump removed from service, pump 

de‐ragging performed following 

morning. 

 

53



 
  

3/18/19  6:13 PM  Lateral Overflow  Called by Fire Department regarding 

lateral spill, area vacuumed, owner 

advised to call plumber. 

3/20/19  9:13 AM   Back up in home  Staff found no problems in District 

main line. Problem was internal 

plumbing of home. Owner advised to

call plumber. 

3/27/19  7:09 AM   Mission Alarm, Highlands 

Pump #2 fail 

Staff inspected pump, reset breaker 

and returned to service 

3/29/19  10:23 AM  Lateral Overflow  Called by Fire Department regarding 

lateral spill, area vacuumed, owner 

advised to call plumber  

 

 

USA Location Requests – 101 

                                             

         Plumbing permit inspections – 4 

 

FUNDING 

N/A 

 

 

 

   

54



4/15/2019

55

lauer
Text Box
January (Green) -   55,165 feetFebruary (Yellow) - 44,081 feetMarch (Red) -         32,789 feet                                         Monthly Cleaning Map



STAFF REPORT 
 

To:    Board of Directors 

 

From:    Mark Dias, Safety and 

Regulatory Compliance Administrator 

 

Date:    April 25, 2019 

 

Subject:  Monthly Report (for March 2019) 

 

RECOMMENDATION  

 

Receive Report‐ Informational only; no action required.  

 
 
DISCUSSION  

 

Safety & Training 

Mar 14‐ Tailgate training. Patrick Treanor, Plant Engineer, gave a presentation on how 

loss of consciousness and even brain damage can be caused by very high blood 

pressures when a worker is enveloped by collapsed debris or a cave‐in during 

trenching/excavations.  This can also happen if a fallen worker is hanging in a body 

harness for extended periods and there is no prompt rescue. Therefore it is critical to 

pre‐plan the specific rescue scenarios for each job and stage all the proper rescue 

equipment before performing these types of work.   

 

Mar 21‐ Annual Spill Prevention Control and Countermeasures Plan (SPCC) training. 

Mark Dias, Safety/Compliance Administrator, reviewed the District’s SPCC Plan which 

he had updated the previous year. With the new stormwater pump system installed in 

Phase I, the plant site is essentially 100% self‐contained. Any rains or potential spills 

that enter the on‐site storm‐water system can be captured in the sump or sent to 

headworks for full treatment. In addition to the two large spill response kits onsite, 

several smaller kits had been placed around the plant. 

 

Mar 28‐ Tailgate training.  Christian Schmidt, Senior Operator, gave a presentation on 

aerial lift/bucket safety. CSRMA training materials were used which highlight how to 

prevent injuries from: electrocution, falls, tip‐overs, getting caught between the lift 

bucket and objects, falling objects, and being catapulted out of the bucket if the lift is 

struck or strikes something. 

56



Ongoing Safety Improvements 

During March Maintenance Superintendent Foley and S/C Admin Dias continued to 

implement safety improvements and seek input from the operations crew and the 

Safety Committee. Many of the physical safety improvements are projects extending 

over weeks or months.  Activities in March included: 

 Respiratory Safety – gas levels at the Calle La Cruz lift station (Ribera Road). 

Background; As described in previous reports, this lift station receives wastewater 

from the Carmel Highlands. The longer travel‐time allows the anaerobic generation 

of dangerous hydrogen sulfide gas. Gas levels were high enough to warrant locking 

the hatch and preventing access until the gas could be mitigated.  Four options were 

identified and are being tried in order of increasing cost. The first two options 

proved ineffective. The third option, dosing liquid calcium nitrate, was started in 

December and showed significant improvement. The dosage rate was doubled in 

January and February. The results showed some additional improvement but did 

not fall in proportion to the dosage increase. Update; Collections staff now suspects 

that the remaining gas levels may be from Pt. Lobos State Park. This effluent is 

pumped separately to Ribera Road. Collections staff is currently constructing a 

dosing system for installation at the Pt. Lobos pump station. Sampling data will be 

reported once available. Monthly tracking continuing. 

 Bulk aqueous ammonia system repairs.  Background; As first described in the 

October report, CAWD receives bulk deliveries of 19% aqueous ammonia 

approximately once per month. The bulk tank is located outdoors on the south side 

of the tertiary building with permanent secondary containment. Newly 

implemented gas monitoring equipment showed that ammonia vapors are escaping 

out of the tank lid during the filling process.  Operations staff have consistently been 

required to wear respirators during deliveries. Until the system is improved, an 

Interim Operating Procedure (IOP) has been promulgated and deliveries are 

overseen by the Safety Officer. Per the IOP staff are now required to remotely 

monitor the tank level at a safe distance using the wireless SCADA system rather 

than stand near the tank during filling. CAWD staff intends to retrofit the piping 

and venting components rather than purchasing a replacement system. A pressure 

gauge was installed to determine the pressures generated during filling. The 

pressures were closely monitored during a delivery and showed that the tank lid 

essentially holds zero pressure and ammonia levels were very high around the lid. 

Update: A new, non‐vented lid was is being ordered and will be sealed onto the 

tank. The pressure will be monitored during a pending delivery. The plant engineer 

will use this data to calculate specifications to retrofit piping, connections and relief 

valves. Monthly tracking continuing. 

 Panic bars installed on doors at tertiary building.  New item.  In an abundance of 

caution, Monterey County Health Department required that “panic bars” be 

installed on exit doors in the pump room of the tertiary building. This room is used 

57



to store large totes of various acids and also houses the ammonia pumps and the 

pressurized ammonia distribution piping. The bars were installed in March.  In the 

event of a line break or chemical spill staff can now immediately leave the room 

without having to slow down to manipulate locks. This also eliminates the 

possibility of hooking clothing on door handles. Item closed. 

 

 

Tours and Outreach 

On April 21st and 28th tours were given to a total of over one hundred 5th graders and 

parents from the Tularcitos Elementary School in Carmel Valley and other classes from 

the Carmel Unified School District.  These have become popular with the teachers and 

the school and we look forward to continuing these tours each spring.   

 

 

Injuries; first aid responses; worker compensation claims 

There were no worker’s comp claims or first aid incidents in March.  The updated 

matrix is below. 

 

  Work Related Injuries and Illnesses for 2018 Reporting Year  

TYPE 

New  

Incidents 

(Month) 

Total  

Incidents (Year)

Total Days Away 

from Work 

(Year) 

Total Days of Job 

Restriction 

(Year) 

Cumulative days 

lost  

(Year) 

OSHA 

Injuries 
0  0  0  0  0 

OSHA 

Illnesses 
0  0  0  0  0 

Other WC 

Claims 
0  0  0  0  0 

First Aid 

(non‐OSHA) 
0  2  0  0  0 

 

 

FUNDING 

N/A‐ Informational item only 

58



59



60



61



62



63



64



STAFF REPORT  
 

 

To:    Board of Directors 

 

From:    Ray De Ocampo 

Laboratory/Environmental Compliance 

Supervisor 

 

Date:    April 25, 2019 

 

Subject:  Monthly Report – March 2019 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

Receive Report‐Informational only; No action required 

 
DISCUSSION 
 

LABORATORY REPORT 

 March 1, 2019‐ Meeting with Headworks Operators, Operation and Laboratory 

Supervisor’s, and Plant Superintendent to develop a plan to sample and test the 

flow streams going to the Dissolved Air Flotation Thickener from Micro Filter 

Reject waste and the flow leaving the Headworks to go through the rest of the 

plant. The lab will be running a variety of tests for background data.  The 

Headworks operators will be testing for Total Solids, Total Suspended Solids, 

and Settable Solids.  The concern is that the return flows to the Headworks are 

impacting the Aeration and Secondary Process.  The study will be on‐going and 

the Headworks Operators will be giving a report in 6 months of the study. 

 March 12, 2019‐ Collected Final Effluent samples for National Pollutant 

Discharge Elimination System Semiannual testing. 

 March 13, 2019‐ Collected Final Effluent Toxicity sample collected for 

Semiannual. 

 March 27, 2019‐ Ray and Fanny attended a Thermo Fisher Ion Chromatography 

Workshop. 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE REPORT 

 Wedgewood Wedding Banquet was non‐compliant with excessive grease greater 

than 2 inches of accumulation. Warning was given on March 14, 2019.  The 

follow up inspection was compliant. 

65



 Bruno’s was non‐compliant with a blockage and trap overflow. Warning given 

on March 25, 2019.  The follow up inspection was compliant.  

 The City of Carmel had sent Mr. De Ocampo a list to start the second inspections 

for Stormwater on March 8, 2019 and Mr. De Ocampo will be contacting the 

restaurants to schedule the stormwater and grease trap inspections. 

 

Restaurant Inspection Table 

 

Restaurant 

 

Compliant 

Reason for Non‐

Compliance 

 

Comments 

Wedgewood Wedding 

Banquet 

Yes  Excessive grease  Follow‐up inspection 

compliant.  

Carmel Belle  Yes    Stormwater Inspection*, 

SC Inspection 

Hanagasa  Yes     

Barmel/Pescadero  Yes     

Robata Grill  Yes     

The Noodle Palace  Yes     

Stationary       Stormwater Inspection*, 

SC Inspection 

Pangaea Grill  Yes    Stormwater Inspection*, 

SC Inspection 

Basil  Yes    Stormwater Inspection*, 

SC Inspection 

Carmel Cocca Bar      Stormwater Inspection* 

AW Shucks  Yes    Stormwater Inspection*, 

SC Inspection 

La Playa Hotel  Yes    Stormwater Inspection*, 

SC Inspection 

Brophy’s   Yes    Stormwater Inspection*, 

SC Inspection 

Flying Fish Grill  Yes    Stormwater Inspection*, 

SC Inspection 

The Tuck Box  Yes    Stormwater Inspection*, 

SC Inspection 

Grasing’s  Yes    Stormwater Inspection*, 

SC Inspection 

       

* denotes that City of Carmel Environmental Compliance Manager is reviewing inspection notes to see if follow up 

is needed. 

 

66



 

Grocery Store/Delicatessen Inspection Table 

 

Grocery Store/Delicatessen 

 

Compliant 

Reason for Non‐

Compliance 

 

Comments 

Bruno’s Market & Deli  Yes  Blockage & 

Overflow 

Stormwater Inspection*, 

Follow‐up inspection is 

compliant. 

5th Ave Deli      Stormwater Inspection* 

 

Restaurant Compliance Table 

% Compliance  Maintenance  Mechanical 

Jan 2018  100%  100% 

Feb 2019  100%  100% 

Mar 2019  100%  100% 

 

FUNDING 

 

N/A‐Informational item only 

67



Project 
Number

Task Name Manager Start Finish Cost

Projects Implementation Plan Schedule Thu 3/1/18 Tue 6/30/26 $22,418,000.00

Treatment Plant Projects Thu 3/1/18 Tue 6/30/26 $13,659,000.00

18-01 Phase 2 - WWTP Rehabilitation Project Treanor Mon 4/30/18 Fri 11/5/21 $8,875,000.00

In House Projects Thu 3/1/18 Tue 6/30/26 $4,344,000.00

18-02 Ops Building Historian and Reporting Foley Mon 4/2/18 Tue 1/15/19 $140,000.00

18-03 CMMS Improvements Foley Wed 7/11/18 Tue 4/30/19 $100,000.00

18-12 NPDES Permit Application (PARTIAL 
RECLAMATION)

Waggoner Thu 3/1/18 Mon 12/31/18 $0.00

18-04 PLC Replacement Project (PARTIAL 
RECLAMATION)

Treanor/Foley Fri 5/4/18 Tue 6/25/19 $400,000.00

18-09 Secondary Clarifier No. 1 Rehab Waggoner Thu 7/5/18 Tue 6/11/19 $250,000.00

19-01 Outfall Lagoon Crossing Repairs Treanor Tue 1/1/19 Wed 3/13/19 $300,000.00

Critical Process Onsite Flood Mitigations 
(PARTIAL RECLAMATION)

Treanor Tue 7/2/19 Tue 6/30/20 $100,000.00

18-05 PLC/SCADA Programming (PARTIAL 
RECLAMATION)

Foley Mon 10/29/18 Tue 7/13/21 $300,000.00

18-06 Disinfection Analyzer Project (PARTIAL 
RECLAMATION)

Waggoner/Young Mon 1/7/19 Tue 11/19/19 $150,000.00

18-07 Digester No. 1 & Old No. 2 Purging and 
Cleaning

Waggoner/Young/Treano Fri 3/15/19 Fri 3/6/20 $150,000.00

18-11 Microturbine Integration Project Treanor/Foley Mon 6/3/19 Tue 6/30/20 $510,000.00

Effluent Building Wet Well Mixing Waggoner Mon 2/3/20 Tue 6/30/20 $60,000.00

1 Water Corrosion Control Waggoner Fri 7/12/19 Thu 6/25/20 $30,000.00

Operations Bldg Basement Renovation Waggoner Mon 2/3/20 Tue 6/30/20 $50,000.00

Cart Charging and Parking Foley Mon 2/3/20 Fri 8/13/21 $50,000.00

18-08 Standby Power Reliability Project Treanor Mon 10/8/18 Fri 10/23/20 $730,000.00

18-10 Aeration Basin Improvements 18/19 
(PARTIAL RECLAMATION)

Waggoner Thu 3/1/18 Fri 6/28/19 $100,000.00

Aeration Basin Improvements 19/20 Waggoner Mon 7/1/19 Thu 4/30/20 $140,000.00

18-28 Perimeter Tree Plan and Implementation Treanor Mon 7/1/19 Tue 6/30/26 $120,000.00

Plant Fence Replacement Treanor Mon 12/2/19 Tue 7/20/21 $150,000.00

Cathodic Protection Testing Treanor Wed 7/3/19 Tue 6/30/20 $30,000.00

Chlorine Contact Pipe Gallery Repairs Treanor Fri 1/1/21 Mon 3/29/21 $44,000.00

Plant Paving, Vault Lids, Drainage Treanor Wed 7/1/20 Tue 3/29/22 $0.00

Lagoon Crossing Rehabilitation Treanor Tue 2/1/22 Wed 6/1/22 $300,000.00

Lunch Room MCC Replace with 
Panelboard

Foley Wed 6/1/22 Thu 11/3/22 $140,000.00

RAS Pump/Piping Rehab Treanor Tue 2/1/22 Wed 6/1/22 $0.00

Treatment Plant Studies & O&M Manuals Treanor Tue 4/3/18 Wed 7/24/24 $440,000.00

18-14 Sea Level Rise Study Treanor Tue 4/3/18 Tue 12/4/18 $220,000.00

Coastal Hazards Monitoring Plan Treanor Fri 11/1/19 Tue 9/1/20 $35,000.00

Treatment Plant Projects

Phase 2 - WWTP Rehabilitation Project

Ops Building Historian and Reporting

CMMS Improvements

rmit Application (PARTIAL RECLAMATION)

PLC Replacement Project (PARTIAL RECLAMATION)

Secondary Clarifier No. 1 Rehab

Outfall Lagoon Crossing Repairs

Critical Process Onsite Flood Mitigations (PARTIAL RECLAMATION)

PLC/SCADA Programming (PARTIAL RECLAMATION)

Disinfection Analyzer Project (PARTIAL RECLAMATION)

Digester No. 1 & Old No. 2 Purging and Cleaning

Microturbine Integration Project

Effluent Building Wet Well Mixing

1 Water Corrosion Control

Operations Bldg Basement Renovation

Cart Charging and Parking

Standby Power Reliability Project

n Basin Improvements 18/19 (PARTIAL RECLAMATION)

Aeration Basin Improvements 19/20

Perimeter Tree Plan and Implementation

Plant Fence Replacement

Cathodic Protection Testing

Chlorine Contact Pipe Gallery Repairs

Plant Paving, Vault Lids, DrainagePlant Paving, Vault Lids, Drainage

Lagoon C

Lunc

RAS PRAS P

Treatment Plant Studies & O&M Manu

Sea Level Rise Study

Coastal Hazards Monitoring Plan

H1 H2 H1 H2 H1 H2 H1 H2
2018 2019 2020 2021

68

barringer
Highlight



Project 
Number

Task Name Manager Start Finish Cost

Life Expectancy Analysis Treanor Wed 9/2/20 Fri 7/2/21 $35,000.00

Online O&M Manual Treanor Wed 9/1/21 Wed 7/24/24 $150,000.00

Collections Projects Mon 4/16/18 Tue 6/11/24 $7,994,000.00

18-19 Standard Plans and Specs Update Lather Fri 11/2/18 Thu 2/28/19 $0.00

19-02 Ordinances (Pretreatment and Admin 
Penalty)

Lather Fri 3/15/19 Mon 9/30/19 $0.00

18-16 Highlands H2S Control Lauer Mon 4/16/18 Mon 12/31/18 $0.00

18-27 Highlands FM ARVs Lauer Mon 9/10/18 Mon 12/24/18 $60,000.00

Highlands FM Flushing Lauer Mon 7/6/20 Fri 10/16/20 $75,000.00

Rio Road CIPP Lining Project Lather Mon 7/1/19 Fri 8/28/20 $1,340,000.00

18-18 Pump Station PLC/SCADA Replacement Foley/Lather Wed 7/18/18 Fri 2/14/20 $600,000.00

19-03 Carmel Meadows Gravity Sewer 
Improvements

Lather Fri 3/15/19 Thu 2/11/21 $1,294,000.00

18-17 Hatton Canyon Pipe Bursting Lather Wed 5/23/18 Wed 10/20/21 $1,450,000.00

Upper Rancho Canada Upsize Line Lather Wed 11/6/19 Tue 6/11/24 $1,500,000.00

Rancho Canada New Development Line Lather Wed 11/6/19 Tue 6/11/24 $1,500,000.00

Assesment Districts/Annexations Lather Mon 7/2/18 Wed 9/30/20 $0.00

18-21 Corona Road Assessment District Lather Thu 8/2/18 Fri 10/4/19 $0.00

19-05 Riley Ranch Annexation/Connection Lather Thu 8/2/18 Mon 10/7/19 $0.00

18-29 September Ranch Water and Sewer Service Lather Tue 9/25/18 Thu 9/26/19 $0.00

Carmel Valley Manor Sewer Lather Mon 7/2/18 Wed 9/30/20 $0.00

2019 Mass Annexation Lather Fri 3/15/19 Wed 7/1/20 $0.00

Collections Studies / Reports Lauer/Lather Thu 5/24/18 Thu 11/21/19 $175,000.00

18-22 Capacity Study/Asset Management Plan Lauer/Lather Thu 5/24/18 Mon 11/26/18 $100,000.00

18-23 New Connections Master Plan Lauer/Lather Thu 8/30/18 Tue 12/25/18 $0.00

19-04 Yankee Point and Otter Cove Highlands Extension Lather Fri 3/15/19 Thu 11/21/19 $0.00

19-06 Collection System SSMP Lauer/Lather Fri 3/15/19 Wed 7/10/19 $0.00

Monte Verde and Bay/Scenic FM Assessment Lauer/Lather Wed 12/26/18 Tue 6/11/19 $75,000.00

Reclamation Projects Wed 5/9/18 Tue 12/1/20 $765,000.00

18-24 Reclamation Sand Filter Integration Project Waggoner Wed 5/9/18 Thu 1/31/19 $100,000.00

18-25 EQ Basin Pump Electrical Foley Mon 10/8/18 Thu 1/31/19 $80,000.00

18-26 RO Pretreatment Acid Tanks and 
Containment

Treanor Fri 6/8/18 Fri 2/28/20 $415,000.00

MF/RO Sound Barriers Treanor Tue 10/1/19 Mon 3/2/20 $35,000.00

Reclamation Line Cathodic Protection 
Testing

Treanor Wed 7/1/20 Tue 12/1/20 $25,000.00

Painting Project Treanor Wed 7/1/20 Tue 12/1/20 $75,000.00

Reclamation Studies Treanor Mon 7/1/19 Fri 5/29/20 $35,000.00

Life Expectancy Analysis

Collections Projects

Standard Plans and Specs Update

Ordinances (Pretreatment and Admin Penalty)

Highlands H2S Control

Highlands FM ARVs

Highlands FM Flushing

Rio Road CIPP Lining Project

Pump Station PLC/SCADA Replacement

Carmel Meadows Gravity Sewer Improvements

Hatton Canyon Pipe BurstingHatton Canyon Pipe Bursting

Upper Rancho

Rancho Canada

Assesment Districts/Annexations

Corona Road Assessment District

Riley Ranch Annexation/Connection

September Ranch Water and Sewer Service

Carmel Valley Manor Sewer

2019 Mass Annexation

Collections Studies / Reports

apacity Study/Asset Management Plan

New Connections Master Plan

Yankee Point and Otter Cove Highlands Extension

Collection System SSMP

Monte Verde and Bay/Scenic FM Assessment

Reclamation Projects

Reclamation Sand Filter Integration Project

EQ Basin Pump Electrical

RO Pretreatment Acid Tanks and Containment

MF/RO Sound Barriers

Reclamation Line Cathodic Protection Testing

Painting Project

Reclamation Studies

H1 H2 H1 H2 H1 H2 H1 H2
2018 2019 2020 2021

69

barringer
Highlight



 
 1 

 

 
 
Staff Report       
 

 

TO:    Board of Directors 

 

FROM:  Ed Waggoner                                               

Operations Superintendent 

 

SUBJECT:  Monthly Report – March 2019 

 

DATE:           April 25, 2019                   

      

                     

RECOMMENDATION  

 

Receive Report‐Informational only; no action required 

 

 

DISCUSSION 

Plant Operation 

Treatment Plant: 

 

•    The treatment plant in general is working well. The plant continued to perform 

with the high infiltration flows from the winter storms during March. The 

average Suspended Solids for the Secondary Effluent was 7.0 mg/L. 

 

•    Operations staff started a test work schedule (of six months) in March that 

allows two‐person coverage on the weekends from 4 hours to 8 hours every 

Saturday and Sunday to better cover the workload on the weekends. 

 

•    Operation staff has divided into two teams of three operators and one 

Superintended and Supervisor for a 6‐month period to better understand 

operations of the secondary section and the tertiary section of the treatment 

facility. 

 

 

70



 
 2 

 

Reclamation: 

 

•  CAWD Staff continues working with H2O Innovations, the RO programming is 

completed with the MF programming scheduled to be completed in late April. A 

signed contract with H2O innovations is schedule to be completed in early April 

for final connections to take place. 

 

•  Staff  completed  Draft  Reclamation  Budget  for  the  fiscal  year  2019‐2020  and 

submitted to the General Manager. 

 

•  Installed with Maintenance Department  the new reclamation  line effluent  flow 

meter and brine reject flow meter on the ocean outfall pipeline. 

 

•   Project  #18‐24, Staff  finished  installing  chemical  feed  system  including  control 

programming  for  the  Coagulation/Flocculation  Basins  in  January  and  are 

continuing  to make  improvements  on  those  systems.  Staff  continued  testing 

Dynasand filters in preparation for the 2019 irrigation season. 

 

• Project #18‐04 was completed by the Maintenance Department with Operation’s 

staff assisting in verifying equipment is correctly communicating with the new PLC 

(Programmable Logic controllers). 

 

• Operations  staff  working  with  Maintenance  Staff  to  preform  preventive 

maintenance  task  associated  with  the  Microfiltration  and  Reverse  Osmosis 

equipment while the system is shut down.  

 

Training: 

 

•   Plant in‐house training continues with weekly Safety meetings.  

 

•   Operations Superintendent on Fridays every week has Operations training (1 

hour) which is mandatory for Operations Staff and is available to Laboratory, 

Maintenance, Collection and any other CAWD employees.  

 

•   Operation Staff members Christian Schmidt and Jason Veile attended a 3 day 

Activated Sludge Operational Class at the San Jose Wastewater facility during 

the month. 

 

Capital Improvement Phase 2 

71



 
 3 

 

•   Staff continues to communicate with Patrick Treanor (CAWD) on Phase 2 

assessments of plant equipment and planning for the following areas; Influent 

Pump Station, Headworks, Blower Building, Chlor/Dechlor Building, Effluent 

Building, Digester No. 1, Digester No. 1 Control Building and Dewatering 

Building.  

 

•     Meeting on March 8th for the 60% review of the Maintenance and Mechanical 

upgrades with Kenndy‐Jenks at the Treatment facility. 

 

 

Meetings Attended 

 

 Monterey County Water Awareness Committee meeting March 14, 2019 at 

California American Water Monterey District offices in Pacific Grove.  

 

 Monterey Water Works Association Board meeting March 14th in Moss 

Landing. 

 

   

Discharge Permit Violations 

 

•   No Reclamation Permit 93‐72 discharge violations for the month of March 

2019. 

 

•    No Violations on the NPDES (National Pollutant Discharge Elimination 

System) NPDES Number CA0047996, Order No. R3‐2014‐0012 for the month 

of March 2019. 

   

 

FUNDING 

 

N/A‐Informational item only 

 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

Edward Waggoner 

72



STAFF REPORT 
 

 

To:    Board of Directors 

 

From:    Chris Foley, Maintenance Superintendent 

 

Date:    April 25, 2019 

 

Subject:  Monthly Maintenance Report – March 2019 

 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Receive Report‐ Informational only; no action required.  
 
DISCUSSION  
 
Maintenance Projects in Progress 

 

 The treatment plant equalization basin project has started. This project will 

relocate the VFD (Variable Frequency Drive) that is mounted on the exterior 

concrete wall to the electrical room. The spare pump will also be installed in the 

basin with a second VFD to provide online redundancy.  

 

 The upgraded tertiary PLC (programmable logic controller) was commissioned, 

and the plant is now running with the new PLC. Automatic control of the 

coagulant/flocculation system is occurring while manual testing of the sand filter 

system is underway.  

 

 Maintenance Staff is working on a training bench for automation and 

instruments. This will provide a test platform before implementing changes to 

equipment such as the lift station backup float system. It will also be a tool in our 

competency‐based training program.  

 

Upcoming Maintenance Projects 

 

 The bill of material for the 65‐kilowatt microturbine exhaust is complete. The 

exhaust parts and the gas conditioning compressor motor should arrive in April 

so that both microturbines can be placed back in operation. 

 

73



 Staff is working on preparations for the secondary clarifier coating and 

mechanical drive installation. The work will be completed by contractors with 

staff oversite and support.  

 

Staff Development 

 

 Staff completed training on the new reclamation turbidity analyzers and 

flowmeters. With this training staff is now able to troubleshoot, maintain, 

calibrate and run diagnostics on these instruments without a factory technician.  

 

Work Order Metrics 

Preventive Maintenance      

      
Total Work Orders Generated      224

Total Work Orders Closed/Done      216

Total Work Orders Still Open      8

Percentage of Work Orders Completed      96.43%

      
Corrective Maintenance      
 

        

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

  Emergency  0       

  Critical   3       

  Urgent  5       

  Routine  2       
 

FUNDING 

N/A‐ Informational item only 

74



STAFF REPORT 
 

 

To:                  Board of Directors 
 

From:             Rachél Lather, Principal Engineer 
 

Date:              April 25, 2019 
 

Subject:          General Engineering 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

  
 Receive Report‐ Informational only; no action required. 
 
 

DISCUSSION 

This report is provided to update the Board on current engineering activities. 

 

General Engineering 
 
 
 

The developer of the Rancho Cañada project met with the District Engineer on March 

27, 2019.  West Yost Associates have determined that a 15‐inch diameter pipeline is 

needed for the collections system conveyance through the new subdivision.  The 

developer is going to prepare a draft agreement to increase the size of the pipe and 

provide a cost estimate for increasing it from 12 to 15 inches.   

 

Clear Peak Development has provided the funding for the due diligence engineering 

study of September Ranch water system by SRT Consultants.  A project kick‐off 

meeting is scheduled for April 17, 2019.  The District has received two proposals for 

completing a rate study and are currently in the process of deciding whether to go 

with Raftelis or Bartle Wells Associates.  Review of the sewer plans for the proposed 

development has been completed and comments have been sent to the September 

Ranch engineering consultants. 

 

Dan Keig has not signed the agreement or provided funding for the Yankee Point 

Project design contract with MNS.  The District Engineer continues to work with the 

General Manager to resolve this issue with Mr. Keig. 

 

 

 

 

75



Collections 

 

The Principal Engineer has been contacted again by California Office of Emergency 

Services (Cal OES) regarding the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) 

grant for replacement of the Hatton Canyon pipeline.  They indicated that they were 

sending the application to FEMA with a recommendation to approve funding and we 

will know by mid‐April if we were selected.  Denise Duffy and Associates are 

completing the required restoration plans and moving forward with State and Federal 

Permits.  The engineering design by MNS is at 90% and will be submitted to the 

District Engineer for review once the restoration plan is completed. 

 

The District was notified by a property owner at 2511 2nd Avenue near Monte Verde, 

that they wanted to install a capped lateral in order to be able to build a new house on 

the adjacent lot after road improvements were completed by the neighborhood 

homeowner’s association.    The 6‐inch diameter, 375‐foot long vitrified clay pipe 

(VCP) sewer line on 2nd Avenue is in extremely poor condition and has been the 

location of past spills.  The most recent reportable spill occurred in 2014 and since that 

time there has been intensive maintenance of this line to prevent further spills.   Since 

this is a high priority line to replace and it makes sense to do so prior to paving the 

road, District staff are moving forward with developing a bid package for replacement 

of this line.  District staff have been in contact with the homeowner’s association and 

are coordinating replacing the sewer line with their plans to pave the road. 

 

 

FUNDING 

N/A‐ Informational item only 

 

 

 

 

 

76



 
STAFF REPORT       
                 

 

   
To:     Board of Directors   

 

From:     Patrick Treanor, Plant Engineer 

 

Subject:    Evaluation of Gas Conditioning and Natural Gas Blending for 

Microturbines – Engine Systems Integration 

 

Date:    April 25, 2019 

 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It  is  recommended  that  the  Board  of  Directors  adopt  a  resolution  authorizing  the 

General Manger  to  execute  a  Professional  Services Agreement with  Engine  Systems 

Integration (ESi) for an evaluation of alternatives for a new gas conditioning system for 

the microturbines and the boiler in an amount not exceed $30,000. 

 
DISCUSSION 
 

The existing gas conditioning system is used to compress the digester gas to a useable 

pressure and remove contaminants  in the gas before  it  is used  in the microturbines to 

generate electricity. The existing gas conditioning system was designed about 15‐years 

ago and the system has numerous issues including: 

1. Lack of capacity to compress all gas produced onsite 

2. Lack of control systems necessary to utilize all gas produced onsite 

3. Poor condition of existing equipment and repeated mechanical failures 

 

Digester gas can be used to run the digester heater (boiler) and the microturbines. Only 

about half of the available digester gas is utilized by the microturbines when the system 

is running. The boiler  typically runs entirely on natural gas purchased  from PG&E  to 

heat  the digester.  If  the boiler was  run on digester gas  all of  the onsite gas  could be 

utilized. The existing gas conditioning system may be upgraded to allow the boiler and 

 

77



the microturbines  to use all of  the digester gas produced onsite  to generate electricity 

and heat the digester. This would reduce the total natural gas and electricity costs at the 

treatment plant.  

 

A  new  system may  be  designed  to  include  a  natural  gas  blending  system  that will 

automatically take in PG&E natural gas when there is not enough digester gas available 

to  meet  the  demand  of  the  boiler  and  microturbines.  A  blend  system  allows  the 

microturbines  and  boiler  to  run  at  a  steady  state  and  at  optimum  efficiency  despite 

fluctuations  in  digester  gas  production.  Furthermore,  compressed  gas  storage 

containers will be evaluated  to provide additional  storage  to allow equipment  to  run 

continuously at a steady state.  

 

Engine Systems Integration was determined to be well qualified to assist the District in 

development  of  a  new  gas  conditioning  system  design.  Chris  Foley  (CAWD 

Maintenance Superintendent) had worked with ESi in the past and was well satisfied by 

their  expertise  and  practical  knowledge  of  gas  and  engine  systems. A  site  visit  and 

interview were conducted with ESi and they were found to be well suited for this work. 

 

The current scope of work  is attached. The current work  is a “pre‐design” evaluation 

that would  evaluate  the  configuration  options,  equipment  sizes,  design  criteria,  and 

technologies for the system design that will best suit the CAWD WWTP facilities. This 

pre‐design evaluation would be followed by further design and implementation. 

 

Attachment: 

1. Proposal  –  Evaluation  of  Gas  Conditioning  and  Natural  Gas  Blending  for 

Capstone Turbines – Engine Systems Integration 

 

FUNDING 

     

The funding for this pre‐design work in the current Fiscal Year would come from 

current reserves in FY18/19. This work would also be funded by the FY19/20 WWTP 

Capital Budget which includes $510,000 in Item #17 – Microturbine Integration Project, 

which was specifically budgeted for this work on the gas conditioning system. The 

work will continue into FY19/20 and may include further design and implementation 

work.  

78



PROPOSAL 

 

Date: 01-April-2019 
Project: Evaluation of gas conditioning and natural gas blending for Capstone turbines 

Prepared by: N. Holmgren 
Prepared for: Carmel Area Wastewater District 

Client Contact: Patrick Treanor, Plant Engineer 
Quotation No. ESI-307-01-04012019 

Revision: 0 
  
Dear Patrick, 

Thank you for taking the time to give me the tour of your facility. I appreciate the opportunity to work 
with CAWD to ensure reliable operation of the Capstone turbines. Please see the recommended scope 
and deliverables. Please feel free to comment and return this proposal to me should you have any 
additions or deletions. 

SCOPE OF WORK 

1. Review the gas conditioning requirements for the Capstone C30 and C65 microturbines. 
2. Evaluate at least three gas conditioning technologies that meet the facility needs. This will 

include the technology recommended by Capstone.  
3. Evaluate gas compression options that suit the facility and gas conditioning equipment. 
4. Evaluate the addition of high-pressure gas storage. 
5. Evaluate the addition of a natural gas blending system.  
6. Provide any technical solutions/recommendations for gas conditioning, blending, and delivery 

identified during the project. 

DELIVERABLES 
ESi will provide a report(s) that includes the following: 

1. A specification for a gas compressor. 
2. A comparison of optional gas conditioning systems that includes installation and long-term 

maintenance costs. 
3. A recommendation for the preferred gas conditioning system. 
4. A specification for the gas conditioning system that includes facility restraints and preferences 

for equipment selection and operating procedures. 
5. A specification for a natural gas blending system. 
6. General equipment layout drawings for the preferred gas conditioning and blending installation. 
7. A control strategy narrative and architecture diagram. 
8. Any system installation/operation recommendations based on the survey of the facility. 

79



ESi proposes to perform this work on a time and expenses basis using our standard Engineer rate of 
$205/hr. Travel expenses are billed at cost +10%, as per our standard terms (see attached). The project 
will be performed with a not to exceed price of $30,000.  

After the primary scope of work is completed, ESi can further assist with finalizing the design, 
construction management, installation supervision, programming, commissioning, training, etc. 

Thank you again for this opportunity. I look forward to your reply. 

Regards, 

 

Neil Holmgren 
President, ESi 
 

 

 

 
 

80



  FEE STRUCTURE JANUARY 1 – DECEMBER 31, 2019 
 

 
The compensation and manner of payment to Engine Systems Integration for services rendered is set 
forth below:  
 

A. RATES 
a. FIXED PRICE PROJECTS  

 
The client shall make progress payments to Engine Systems Integration (in accordance with a 
signed contract or purchase order) during the execution of the agreement for which Engine 
Systems Integration is to provide services.   

b.  HOURLY RATES  
 

The CLIENT shall pay Engine Systems Integration for each hour spent in the performance of 
the PROJECT ASSIGNMENT in accordance with the rate schedule shown below. Time is 
typically rounded to nearest half hour. 

 
 

Discipline or 
Employee 

Normal 8-HR 
Hourly Rate* 

Principal Engineer $275 
Engineer $205 

Certified Automation Professional $205 
Drafter $168 

Administrative $55 
Subcontractors Cost +21% 

 
*Billed rate may be affected by location, duration of project and environmental factors such as 
proximity to combat zones or environmental hazards. Emergency expedite rates are billed at 1.5 
times the standard rates. 

 
c.  MINIMUM FEE CHARGES 

  
The minimum charge for work on brief projects shall be four (4) hours. 

d.  EXPENSES 
 
Expenses are invoiced at actual cost + 10% unless other arrangements are agreed upon.    
 
Local Mileage:  $ 0.58 per mile  

81



Local US Government GSA rates for the Continental United States (CONUS) and State 
Department Foreign per diem rates are used as a guideline to determine travel expenses. 
Daily meals and incidentals will be a minimum of $60/day. 

 
CONUS rates will be determined by the location of the jobsite or the most reasonable area 
of lodging near the jobsite.  The greater of these rates will be selected for the project.  
 
For CONUS or State Department per diem rate details please visit the link below, once at 
site, click on state and/or zip code of interest. 
 

http://www.gsa.gov/portal/category/21287 
https://aoprals.state.gov/web920/per_diem.asp 

B. TRAVEL TO AND FROM JOB SITE  
 
Engine Systems Integration will invoice the CLIENT Travel time away from the office at the normal 
hourly rate for that portion of the travel expended exclusively on behalf of the CLIENT with a 
maximum per day travel charge of eight (8) hours per 24-hour day.   
 
Domestic air travel will be booked in premium economy seating on major airlines selected by ESI. For 
air travel outside of the continental United States, or when services are requested for personnel to be 
on-site within 24-hours or less, Engine Systems Integration personnel shall, at their option, fly 
business class.   

 
C. STANDBY TIME 

 
Waiting time that Engine Systems Integration personnel are prevented from working due to 
circumstances beyond their control, or to retain Engine Systems Integration at the job site location 
will be invoiced at the NORMAL HOURLY RATE unless previous arrangements are made. 

D. TERMS 
 

Invoices become delinquent on the thirtieth (30
th

) day following issuance and will be assessed a late 
payment penalty of 5% per month, compounded monthly for each month thereafter.  Invoices are 
issued at the end of each month or at the completion of services. 

E. LITIGATION SERVICES  
 

Unless the CLIENT and Engine Systems Integration agree to other arrangements prior to 
commencement of services, the compensation and manner of payment for services rendered in 
support of litigation will be follows: 
   

a. Fees for investigative analysis, document review, discussions, meetings, etc., shall be 
invoiced at the normal hourly rate. 

 

82



b. Fees for court preparation, including deposition preparation, pre-trial conference and 
non-testimony attendance at a deposition or in court will be invoiced at the normal hourly 
rate. 

 

c. Fees for testimony as a witness in a deposition or for testimony at trial shall be invoiced 
at one and one half (1.5) times the normal hourly rate including overtime charges. 

 
d. A minimum retainer of 25% of the expected cost of services is required before provision 

of any services and placed into a client escrow account.  Any balance of retainer shall be 
returned upon conclusion of services. 

 

e. Client must sign letter of engagement for services agreeing for payment of services 
rendered by Engine Systems Integration in full regardless of outcome of litigation, 
mediation or other settlement.  CLIENT shall agree to hold Engine Systems Integration 
harmless from outcome of settlement or damages. 

 

 
 

F. PRO FORMA INVOICE 
 

If requested, Engine Systems Integration will send client a sample / Pro Forma Invoice for review and 
approval before commencement of any work. 

 
 

Engine Systems Integration  
2900 Main Street, Bldg. 137, Ste. 105 

Alameda, CA 94501 
 (510) 500-1294 office 

(510) 775-1594 fax 
 

Federal Tax Identification Number:  46-4870115 

83



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019‐14 

 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE A 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $30,000 FOR 

AN EVALUATION OF GAS CONDITIONING AND NATURAL GAS BLENDING FOR 

MICROTURBINES – ENGINE SYSTEMS INTEGRATION 

 
-oOo- 

 
 WHEREAS, the District is anticipating budgeting in FY19/20 for implementation of 

Microturbine Integration work focusing on the gas conditioning system; and 

  WHEREAS, there are sufficient funds in the current year capital reserves to complete 

this project and to position the District for the FY19/20 project; and 

WHEREAS, Engine Systems Integration has demonstrated expertise in the field of 

services required; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Carmel Area 

Wastewater District that it does hereby authorize the General Manager to enter into a 

professional services agreement with a not to exceed amount of $30,000, with Engine Systems 

Integration for Evaluation of Gas Conditioning and Natural Gas Blending for Microturbines. 

  PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Carmel 

Area Wastewater District duly held on April 25, 2019, by the following vote: 

  AYES:    BOARD MEMBERS: 

  NOES:    BOARD MEMBERS: 

  ABSENT:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

 

 

 

84



 

  

               _____________________________ 

                President of the Board 

 

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________ 

  Secretary of the Board 

85



 

STAFF REPORT       

                 

   
To:     Board of Directors   

 

From:     Rachél Lather Principal Engineer 

 

Subject:    Contract  for Environmental Review, Planning and Mapping Services  for 

2019 Local Agency Formation Commission  (LAFCO) Sphere of  Influence 

and Annexation of Portions of Carmel Valley and Carmel Highlands 

 

Date:     April 25, 2019 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

Staff recommends that the Board of Directors adopts a resolution authorizing the General 

Manager  to  sign  a  contract  with  Denise  Duffy  &  Associates  (DDA)  to  provide 

environmental  review,  annexation mapping,  and geographic descriptions  for LAFCO 

annexation process of portions of Carmel Valley and Carmel Highlands in an amount not 

to exceed $49,830.  

 

DISCUSSION 

 

Over the past year, CAWD has been approached by various property owners regarding 

annexation and connection to our sewer system. These properties include Carmel 

Valley Manor, Yankee Point, Corona Road and the Larsen parcel. The Principal 

Engineer and General Manager met with LAFCO and County of Monterey staff on 

March 7, 2019 in order to develop a game plan for completing the next annexations to 

the District.  

 

At that meeting we discussed what should be the limits of the annexation and that 

LAFCO preferred a large annexation rather than a piecemeal approach.  In addition, 

LAFCO staff suggested that DDA should be approached to prepare the environmental 

 

86



documents needed for an annexation.  DDA provided this service for the District’s 2016 

Annexation of properties in Carmel Valley and they could build on this knowledge for 

the remaining areas to be annexed.    

 

DDA provided the attached proposal that includes Environmental Review services by 

DDA and land surveying services by Whitson Engineers in an amount not to exceed 

$49,830 to complete the work needed to apply for a LAFCO annexation.   

 

FUNDING 

 

There is sufficient funding in the Administrative Contingencies budget for this work.  

The connection fee for properties in the annexed area will include an additional fee to 

repay for the cost of annexation. 

87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95

barringer
Typewritten Text
Intentionally left blank

barringer
Typewritten Text



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



RESOLUTION NO. 2019‐15 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO SIGN A 

CONTRACT WITH DENISE DUFFY & ASSOCIATES TO PROVIDE 

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW, ANNEXATION MAPPING, AND GEOGRAPHIC 

DESCRIPTIONS FOR LAFCO ANNEXATION PROCESS OF PORTIONS OF 

CARMEL VALLEY AND CARMEL HIGHLANDS IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO 

EXCEED $49,830 

 

‐oOo‐ 

 
WHEREAS, the District has been approached by property owners extending 

east to Mid Valley and south to Yankee Point regarding annexation and connection 

to the District; and 

WHEREAS, the Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) has cited a 

desire to have a single large annexation rather than a piecemeal approach; and 

WHEREAS, it is more efficient to utilize the services of Denise Duffy & 

Associates to provide environmental review, annexation mapping, and geographic 

descriptions; and 

WHEREAS, there are sufficient funds in the Administration Department 

Contingency budget to cover the contract cost; and 

WHEREAS, staff has testified to the satisfaction of the Board that Denise 

Duffy & Associates has provided the District with a fair services quote for the work 

proposed. 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the 

Carmel Area Wastewater District, that the Board authorizes the General Manager to 

sign a contract with Denise Duffy & Associates to provide environmental review, 

annexation mapping, and geographic descriptions for a LAFCO annexation of 

portions of Carmel Valley and Carmel Highlands in an amount not to exceed 

115



$49,830. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the 

Carmel Area Wastewater District duly held on April 25, 2019 by the following vote: 

 

AYES:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

 

NOES:  BOARD MEMBERS 

 

ABSENT:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

 

 

              _____________________________ 

              President of the Board 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________ 

Secretary to the Board 

 

116



STAFF REPORT 
 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Barbara Buikema, General Manager 
 
Date:  April 25, 2019 
 
Subject: Rules for use of Acronyms in District Writing 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
This report is for Board discussion and direction. 
 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The District maintains a list of acronyms that it includes at the front of each board packet.  The 
list is not intended to cover every acronym.  Rather it is intended to cover only those most 
commonly used in wastewater.  Additionally, staff has tried to keep the Acronym List to a single 
page; but will periodically review and either add or delete items as appropriate. 
 
All District reports/letters will follow these rules when using acronyms: 
 

 Write acronyms in full caps with no periods 
 AIDS  (Correct) 
 A.I.D.S. (Incorrect) 

 
 On first mention, write the acronyms in full followed by the acronym in parenthesis.  

Thereafter, use only the acronym. 
 

 Acronyms that are well-known and appear in the alphabetical section of a standard 
dictionary do not need to be introduced or spelled out, even upon first mention. 

 After 25 years, she finally threw out her VCR. (Correct) 
 After 25 years, she finally threw out her videocassette recorder (VCR). 

(Incorrect) 
 

 Acronyms that are more common than the actual name do not need to be spelled out.  Or, 
may be inserted after the acronym. 

 The package delivery company United Parcel Service, for example, is 
better known as UPS. 

 Alternatively, “The delivery company UPS (United Parcel Service) is 
known for ….” 

117



 
 If unsure whether your acronym would be considered well known, then you should spell 

it out to be safe. 
 

 If including your acronym in brackets on first mention introduces awkwardness into your 
text, either re-write your sentence or save the bracketed acronym for the next time you 
mention the term. 
 

 Remove acronyms if the sentence has too many of them. 
 The TVEPA’s ERP had moderate success in eliminating GHGs in the GTVA. 

(alphabet soup!) 
 The Thames Valley Environmental Protection Agency’s Environmental 

Restoration Program had moderate success in cutting greenhouse gas emissions in 
the Greater Thames Valley Area. (longer, but much clearer) 

 
 Some international organizations are best known by acronyms that are derived from their 

non-English names.  In these cases, use both the organization’s proper name and the 
English translation of the name. 
 The PRI (Partido Revolucionario Institucional; Institutional Revolutionary Party) 

rules Mexico for decades.  (Correct) 
 

 If an acronym should be preceded by “a” or “an” choose based on the pronunciation of 
the acronym.  If the acronym begins with a vowel sound, use “an.”  If the acronym begins 
with a consonant sound, use “a.” 
 Create a URL (“you-ar-el”) for the new website. 
 She joined an ROTC (“ar-oh-tee-cee”) program last year. 

 
 To make an acronym plural, add an “s” – no apostrophes 

 The company is selling its old CPU’s. (Incorrect) 
 The company is selling its old CPUs.  (Correct) 

 
 Remember what your acronym stands for, so you do not follow it up with a word that it 

already includes. 
 The Royal Bank installed new ATM machines in the shopping mall. (Incorrect.  

ATM = automated teller machine) 
 The Royal Bank installed new ATMs in the shopping mall.  (Correct) 

 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
None 

118



 
STAFF REPORT 
 

 

To:    Board of Directors 

 

From:    Barbara Buikema, General Manager 

 

Date:    April 26, 2018 

 

Subject:  Pebble Beach Community Services District – Regular Board Meeting 

March 2018 

 

 

DISCUSSION 

 

Interesting points from the March 30, 2018 meeting that are of specific interest to this 

District: 

 

 Total cash balance at the end of February 2018 was $19.6M; of that amount, 

$8.7M was designated for Capital Acquisition and Outlay Reserves.  Property 

taxes comprise roughly 85% of District revenues with user fees making up 12%. 

 

 Budget Summary for 2017‐18 year‐to‐date showed total revenues at 61.8% and 

total expenditures at 32.7%.  

 

 Staff presented the 2018‐19 Long‐Term Capital Outlay Program.  The anticipated 

total cost of PBCSD’s financial responsibilities amount to $51M.  There was also a 

presentation of the District’s Long‐Term Financial Plan which provided a 

projection of the District’s long‐term financial position. 

 

 Forest Lake Reservoir held 115 MG (million gallons) of recycled water or 100% of 

permitted capacity.  Current storage volume is 10% above the historic average of 

105 MG. 

 

 Total irrigation water demand for the 2018 calendar year through February was 

46 AF (acre feet).  Total demand for the calendar year is 21% above the 5‐year 

average of 38 AF and 119% above the 23‐year average annual usage of 21 AF.  

Forest Lake net storage increase of approximately 14 million gallons in February. 

 Irrigation demand in February tracked significantly above the prior year 

119



average, the 5‐year, and 23‐year averages due to the lack of rainfall.  By 

comparison a net storage increase of approximately 2 million gallons was 

observed in February of last year due to the reservoir being near full capacity at 

the beginning of the month.  

 

 Average daily wastewater flow of 371,000 GPD was measured in February at the 

PBCSD‐Carmel gate.  This represents 33% of the total flow at the CAWD 

treatment facility.  The measured PBCSD flow was 34% below the five‐year 

average of 560,000 GPD for the month of February; the CAWD total flow was 

27% below the five‐year average of 1,547,000 GPD for February.   

 

 Alternative Reclamation Water Sources for the calendar year‐to‐date include:  4th 

Fairway Diversion 5 AF, MPCC #8 Well 5 AF, and MPCC #9 Well 2 AF.  Total = 

11 AF. 

 

 Staff reported on emergency repairs at the Sunset Lane P‐5.  On February 26, 

2018 the station experienced a pipe failure causing the dry pump pit to “go under 

water”.  The station was out of service for twelve days; flows were bypassed; and 

a new force main isolation valve was installed.  Estimated costs are predicted to 

be in the range of $35‐40,000. 

 

 Average daily wastewater flows measured in million gallons per day (MG) 

show: 

 

MONTH  TOTAL  CAWD FLOW  PBCSD FLOW  PBCSD 

July ‐ 17  40.754  28.456  12.298  30.176% 

Aug – 17  40.177  28.045  12.132  30.196% 

Sept ‐ 17  35.769  24.800  10.969  30.666% 

Oct ‐ 17  35.335  25.077  10.258  29.031% 

Nov – 17  32.181  23.075  9.106  28.296% 

Dec ‐ 17  32.586  23.733  8.853  27.168% 

Jan ‐ 18  38.026  24.883  13.143  34.563% 

Feb ‐ 18  31.840  21.455  10.385  32.616% 

 

Total  286.668  199.524  87.144  30.399% 

 

120



 
 

CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT 

SUMMARY OF RETIREMENT PENSION PLAN TRUSTEES  

MEETING HELD ‐ April 15, 2019 

 

A meeting of the Retirement Pension Plan Trustees was held on Monday, April 

15, 2019 at 10:30 a.m.     

 

Those Present Included:  Michael Rachel, Director, Trustee 

        Rob Wellington, Legal Counsel, Trustee 

        Barbara Buikema, General Manager, Trustee 

        William J. Hastie, Jr., MBA, Investment Advisor 

       

                       

I. Portfolio Performance Review 1st Quarter 2019 
 

The portfolio remains highly diversified in the first quarter.  The bulk of gains 

experienced occurred in Jan & Feb.  CAWD Portfolio value as of 03‐31‐19 was 

$5,258,846.   The Time Weighted Return for the quarter was 9.08% with total 

gains of $414,024.  Mr. Hastie described the quarter as a “good solid performance 

across the board”. 

 

The Market Review comparison indicates general improvement across all 

categories.  The portfolio Beta dropped slightly because the Real Estate 

Investment Trust is not correlated to the stock market.  A glance at the net 

expense ratio shows some diversity from 0.07 to 1.16.  Mr. Hastie felt that 

Federated Kaufmann Small Cap, although a higher expense ratio, was justified 

by its performance. 

 

Finally, it is the opinion of Hastie Financial Group and analyst at 

Commonwealth Financial, that if there is a trade deal with China the market will 

go much higher.  Strong earning will follow and the market will rise. 

 

The portfolio composition remains at a 60% stocks 40% bonds.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

121



Portfolio Risk Measures (3‐year measure): 

 

  Three 

Year  S&P 

500 

Five 

Year  S&P 500 

Ten 

Year 

 

S&P 500 

Beta (a)  0.61    0.64    0.67   

Standard 

Deviation (b) 

6.86  10.73  7.44  11.19  8.70  12.69 

Mean  10.96  13.51  8.19  8.91  12.91  15.92 

Alpha  2.00    0.82    2.01   

(a) Strategy is to maintain Beta in the range of 0.60 ‐ 0.67 

(b) Strategy is to remain at roughly 2/3 of S & P 500 

 

II. 2nd Quarter 2019 Action Plan 
 

For the 2nd Quarter the strategy is to remain broadly diversified and rebalance 

as necessary.    

 Sell Prudential Floating Rate 

 Buy Vanguard Intermediate Bond Index and PGIM High Yield 

 Rebalance the portfolio:  add a Real Estate Investment Trust, cut 

international exposure and focus on U.S. markets 

 Fixed Income floating rate bonds lost ground.  There is a negative 

correlation between stock and bonds to preserve value (i.e. when stocks 

go up; bonds go down). 

 Vanguard Intermediate will have a negative correlation to stocks.  PGIM 

has a positive correlation to stocks. 

 

 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at approximately 

11:30 a.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Barbara Buikema  

General Manager 

122



1st Quarter Performance Review

2nd Quarter Action Plan

April 15, 2019

Carmel Area Wastewater District

Defined Benefit Plan

123



1st Quarter OVERVIEW

124



1st Quarter OVERVIEW

125



1st Quarter OVERVIEW

126



MARKET REVIEW – 3/31/2019

3 Month 1 Year 3 Year 5 Year

S&P 500 TR 13.65 9.50 13.51 10.91

Russell 1000 14.00 9.30 13.52 10.63

Russell Mid Cap 16.54 6.47 11.82 8.81

Russell 2000 14.58 2.05 12.92 7.05

MSCI EAFE 9.98 -3.71 7.27 2.33

MSCI Emerging Markets 9.91 -7.41 10.68 3.68

Barclays Capital US 
Aggregate 

2.94 4.48 2.03 2.74

127



2ND QUARTER 2019 FUND CHANGES

 Sell:
 Prudential Floating Rate

Buy:
 Vanguard Intermediate Bond Index

 PGIM High Yield

128



2ND QUARTER 2019 OVERALL PORTFOLIO

8%

14%

5%

10%

5%

7%7%

4%

16%

10%

9%

5%

Fidelity Advisor Growth Opportunity - 8%

iShares Core S&P 500 - 14%

Columbia Contrarian Core - 5%

Columbia Dividend Income - 10%

Vanguard Extended Market Index - 5%

Federated Kaufmann Small Cap - 7%

Oppenheimer Global Opportunities - 7%

BlackRock Real Estate Securities - 4%

PIMCO Income - 16%

Vanguard Intermediate Bond Index - 10%

PGIM High Yield - 9%

Cash - 5%

129



RISK & RISK ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE

BETA:

A measure of volatility (risk) relative to the Standard & Poor's 500 Index.  Beta of 1.0 indicates 
risk equal to that of the Standard & Poor's 500 Index over a given period of time, usually 3, 5 and  
10 years.  Beta of less than 1.0 indicates risk less than that of the S&P 500 Index.

3 Year 5 Year 10 Year
CAWD Portfolio 0.61 0.64 0.67

130



FUND RISK & COST STATISTICS

Mutual Fund/ETF 3 Year Beta Net Expense 
Ratio

Fidelity Advisor Growth Opportunity 0.97 0.66

iShares Core S&P 500 1.00 0.04

Columbia Contrarian Core 0.97 0.79

Columbia Dividend Income 0.85 0.71

Vanguard Extended Market Index 1.02 0.08

Federated Kaufmann Small Cap 0.90 1.16

Oppenheimer Global Opportunities 1.24 0.92

PIMCO Income 0.38 0.60

Vanguard Intermediate Bond Index 0.86 0.07

PGIM High Yield 0.94 0.55

131



RISK & RISK ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE

STANDARD DEVIATION:

Another measure of volatility (risk).  A higher Standard Deviation indicates a higher degree of volatility 
(risk) over a given period of time, usually 3, 5 and 10 years.  We will compare the CAWD Portfolio with 
the S&P 500 Index.

3 Year 5 Year 10 Year_
CAWD Portfolio 6.86 7.44 8.70 

Standard & Poor's 500 Index 10.73 11.19 12.69

132



RISK & RISK ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE

MEAN:

Mean return over a given period of time, usually 3, 5 and 10 years.  We will compare the CAWD 
Portfolio with the S&P 500 Index.

3 Year 5 Year 10 Year
CAWD Portfolio 10.96 8.19 12.91

Standard & Poor's 500 Index 13.51 8.91 15.92

133



RISK & RISK ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE

ALPHA:

A measure of risk-adjusted returns.  An Alpha of 0 indicates a return proportionate to the degree of 
risk taken.  A positive Alpha indicates a return generated in excess of the degree of risk taken.

3 Year 5 Year 10 Year
CAWD Portfolio 2.00 0.82 2.01

134



                                  Minutes of the Sea Level Rise Committee meeting held April 9, 2019

1

 

 

 
 
 
 

CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT (CAWD) 
Sea Level Rise Committee Meeting 

Tuesday, April 9, 2019 
 

 

CALL TO ORDER - ROLL CALL - The meeting was called to order at 1:32 p.m. 

 
Present:  Greg D’Ambrosio, Carmel Area Wastewater District (CAWD) 
  Robert Siegfried, CAWD 
  Jeff Froke, Pebble Beach Community Services District (PBCSD) 
  Leo Laska, PBCSD 
   
Absent: David Heuck, Pebble Beach Company (PBCo) 
 Joe Houston, Independent Reclaimed Water Users Group (IRWUG) 

 
Others: Barbara Buikema, Ge n e ra l Manager, CAWD 

Patrick Treanor, Plant Engineer, CAWD 
Chris Foley, Maintenance Superintendent  
Robert Wellington, Wellington Law Offices, District Legal Counsel 
Mike Niccum, General Manager, PBCSD 
Nicholas Becker, Principal Engineer, PBCSD 
Brent Reitz, Project Liaison, PBCo 
JJ West, IRWUG 
Susan McCabe, McCabe & Co., Coastal Consultant 
Domine Barringer, Secretary of the Board, CAWD 

 
 
AGENDA ITEMS 
1. Introductions 

 
 This meeting is to discuss and compare the San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District and CAWD coastal 

permits.  There was also an overall discussion of the meeting that CAWD had with Coastal staff and the 
special conditions. 

2. Discuss South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District (SSLOCSD) and CAWD vulnerabilities 

 CAWD used “extreme” sea level rise projections coupled with increased storm intensity to come up with a 
40-year estimated time of impact. 

 SSLOCSD used “med-high” sea level rise projections 

 CAWD has 5 ft. of freeboard over current 100 yr. flood levels 

 SSLOCSD will have 1 ft. of freeboard after their upcoming Redundancy Project is complete 

 Per Mr. Treanor, CAWD follows much more stringent guidelines than SSLOCSD and they do not have a 
reclamation/water resource component 

135



                                  Minutes of the Sea Level Rise Committee meeting held April 9, 2019

2

 

 

3. Recap of CAWD Sea Level Rise Study and Estimated Timeline for Impacts 

 ESA report indicates that the sand bar height will not increase as much as sea level rise and therefore the 
downstream weir will be lower than projected and therefore flood elevations will be lower 

 Mr. Treanor made several comments regarding the breaching of the sand bar before it floods.  It is the 
sandbar that impacts sea level rise.   

 The study does not consider that the flood plain area will increase and spread out with future sea level rise.  
This will reduce the projections for sea level rise. 

 According to the CAWD Sea Level Rise Study, the plant will not be impacted significantly for 40-7ears 
under the “extreme” scenario.  Under “med-high” projections the plant will not be impacted until 2080. 

 Mr. Wellington stated that there have been several improvements at the CAWD plant regarding the 100-7r 
flood.  Mr. Treanor affirmed. 

4. Discuss Big Picture setting and California Coastal Commission (CCC) goals for the lower Carmel River 
Area 

 CCC opposes armoring/alteration of the shoreline or river 

 CCC staff feels moving the plant is a positive public benefit and good for lagoon habitat 

 Mission Fields levy is not adequate to protect the homes from a 100-year flood conditions 

 Ecosystem Protection Barrier – the CCC staff says they cannot answer what gets coastal armoring and 
what does not 

5. Review CAWD staff meeting with Central Coast Coastal Staff on March 22, 2019 

 Meeting was generally positive.  Staff appears willing to work with us. 

 CAWD staff feels it is too early to make moving the plant the “default outcome” 

6. Next Steps  
 

 Goal is to obtain a CCC permit without a time limit.  To move towards a “conversation” with the CCC 
rather than an edict 
 

 CAWD’s obligation:  to complete all CCC required reports and establish a series of “triggers” 
 

 Director Froke requested that the attorney be present when a scope of work is being presented and when 
the CC is present. 

 
 Both CAWD and PBCSD will be working to establish another meeting to discuss cost sharing and placing 

this topic into the budget process 
 
 
 
 The meeting was adjourned at 3:31 p.m.   
 

136



 
STAFF REPORT       
                 

 

   
To:     Board of Directors   

 

From:     Patrick Treanor, Plant Engineer 

 

Subject:    Lagoon Crossing Repairs – Post Activity Report  

 

Date:    April 25th, 2019 

 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

1. Receive Report ‐ Informational only. 

 
DISCUSSION 
 

On  January  15,  2019  the  CAWD  Board  of Directors  authorized  proceeding with  an 

emergency  construction  contract  with  Crescent  Diving  and  Construction  Inc.  to 

complete immediate repairs to the pipeline infrastructure crossing the lagoon to avoid a 

potential pipeline failure. This report provides a recap of the work now that it has been 

successfully completed. 

 

Contractor: Crescent Diving and Construction Inc. 

Biological Monitor: Johnson Marigot Consulting 

Design Engineer: Kennedy/Jenks Consultants 

Construction Manager/Owner: Carmel Area Wastewater District 

Total Cost: Approximately $200,000 (still awaiting one invoice from Biological Monitor) 

 

CAWD  staff  consulted with  the  Army  Corps  of  Engineers  to  obtain  an  emergency 

permit  to  conduct  the  work  in  the  lagoon  in  January  and  obtained  the  permit  on 

January 28th. Other emergency authorizations  from  the Regional Water Board and  the 

Coastal Commission were also obtained.  

 

 

137



The  scope  of work  included  repairs  to  existing pipeline  infrastructure:  fiber wrap  of 

existing piles and sections of 24‐inch pipeline, encasement of support structure cross‐

beams  in  reinforced  concrete,  repair  of  a  crack  in  cement mortar  coating  on  24‐inch 

pipe, and installation of steel cable bracing at the bottom of the piles. 

 

The  repair  work  was  successful  and  completed  as  anticipated  per  the  original 

emergency permit application. Most of  the work was conducted between February 4th 

and  February  20th  culminating  in  placement  of  the  concrete  encasement  on  the  20th. 

After  concrete was placed on February  20th  the  contractor  left  the  site  for  18 days  to 

allow  the concrete  to cure so  that  the concrete could reach  full design strength before 

removing forms. No work occurred during this time. The contractor returned on March 

11th to remove the concrete forms, complete remaining minor work items, and clean up 

the site. The site was entirely cleaned up and project completed on March 13th. 

 

An  environmental  monitor  provided  by  Johnson  Marigot  was  present  during  all 

construction work to monitor for sensitive species and to observe that permit conditions 

were  met.  The  Biological  Monitor  was  onsite  during  all  work  and  reported  no 

environmental impacts and no impacts to special status species caused by the work. 

 

A photo of the completed repair is shown below. 

 

 
Photo of Completed Repair 

 

138



  

Before and after photos are shown in Figure 1 below. 

 

Figure 1 – Before and After Photos 

 

Before Repair  After Repair 

Overall (before)  Overall (after) 

 
Cross Beam (before) 

 
Cross Beam (after) 

 

 

The work was  successful  in avoiding any damage  to  the environment by  completing 

work  in an environmentally  friendly way and was successful  in preventing a possible 

sewer spill from impacting the lagoon. 

 

FUNDING 

   

N/A‐ Informational item only 

139



STAFF REPORT 
 

 

To:    Board of Directors 

 

From:    Barbara Buikema, General Manager 

 

Date:    April 25, 2019 

 

Subject:  Quarterly Progress Report (Jan – March 2019) 

 

RECOMMENDATION  

 

This report is informational only – no action is required.  The Board requested a quarterly 

update of progress made throughout the District.  This report is designed to offer a high‐ 

level view of the first quarter of 2019. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
General Management 

 The Board authorized and staff completed emergency repairs on the outfall 

pipeline crossing.  This project was an excellent demonstration of staff’s ability to 

not only manage a significant project with time and regulatory restraints but also 

demonstrates teamwork across departments.   

 

 Phase 2 design proceeds on track – currently at 60%  

 

 Implemented new purchasing software and inventory module.  Mr. Foley and 

staff did an excellent job ensuring that everyone is trained and utilizing the new 

software. 

 

 We continue to work with multiple parties about the potential of connecting to 

the District (Corona Ranch, Yankee Point, Carmel Valley Manor).  We have 

spoken with LAFCO and are likely to proceed with another mass annexation 

project.  Ms. Lather’s experience in assessment district formation is proving to be 

valuable. 

 

 We are making progress with evaluation of September Ranch concept.  We 

entered into a contract with SRT Consultants for a project evaluation and will be 

engaging a rate model consultant next quarter. 

 

140



 

 

 Final Sea Level Rise report received and presented to Board in January 2019.  The 

report has also been presented to the Coastal Commission and we will be 

working on an agreement with them regarding the facility.  We had the first Sea 

Level Rise Committee meeting on April 9th and we are also working on engaging 

a land use attorney experienced in coastal issues.  I am also using this as an 

opportunity to encourage participation from Mr. Foley.  Sea Level Rise and 

succession planning make a great pairing. 

 

 Continued rehab of Clarifiers – we’ve completed three of the clarifiers and have 

one remaining that is scheduled to be completed before June 30th of this year. 

 

 We continue to look for alternative revenue streams for the plant.    We’ve met 

with Salinas Waste Management to discuss possibility of taking waste grower 

cuttings and are scheduled to travel to Gonzales for further discussions and a 

field trip of their recycling facility.  We are taking waste from Monterey 

Botanicals (aka hemp grower).  And finally, we are taking brine from Tehama. 

 

 Continued negotiation with the County and Big Sur Land Trust regarding an 

agreement to mitigate costs for outfall project.  The County has agreed that their 

project will have an impact on our infrastructure and negotiations has turned to 

mitigation measures.  The County continues to hold that they are responsible to 

assist CAWD in finding grant funding.   

 

 We continue to work on extending data received in Collections Asset 

Management Study into a long‐term capital plan for Collections.  I believe that it 

will appear more fully in the 2020‐21 budget document. 

 

 Engaged Frisch Engineering to develop PLC Equipment for the Collection 

system pump station SCADA upgrade.  The goal is to move pump stations to 

Ignition (the same as treatment plant) and to upgrade all updated PLCs. 

 

 

Financial Matters 

 Presented Preliminary Budget for 2019‐20 and Rate Model at March Board 

meeting. 

 

 Continued to respond to questions from OES regarding grant application.  

Outfall application was withdrawn from consideration as we continued to 

attempt to negotiate an agreement with Monterey County.  Hatton Canyon 

application has received tentative verbal approval.     

141



 

Personnel Management 

 Held a Strategy Session with the Board, management staff, and facilitator.  We 

are continuing the leadership training through Leapfrog Consulting.  The 

feedback from staff has been very gratifying.  I think we are on a solid path 

towards changing hearts and minds here at the District – our goal is to make 

manager and staff alike take ownership and to feel that they are a critical part of 

the District’s future. 

 

 Continue to manage the transition to job sharing arrangement at the Admin 

Office front desk.  We are very pleased with Domine Barringer, our new Admin 

Assistant/Board Clerk.  

 

 Continue to work with Beth Ingram from CSI HR Group to ensure success of 

outsourced human resource function.  Ms. Ingram has a dedicated office at the 

plant and staff is encouraged to interact with her as necessary.  I believe bringing 

the HR function closer to the staff is an important step.  We are also working on a 

program to educate employees about our benefit program – we continue to find 

that there are gaps in employee knowledge about benefits available to them.  Ms. 

Ingram will be contacting vendors and arranging on site education sessions.  

Finally, I’m informed that the “new” employee handbook is making progress. 

 

 I took a second week of vacation the first week of April and assigned Chris Foley, 

Maintenance Superintendent the job of “Acting GM”.  He did a superb job for the 

District and I think he got a better sense of what the General Manager position 

might look like for him. 

 

 Encourage continued participation of staff in CWEA from all staff.  In addition to 

five employee acknowledgements at the local Monterey Bay Section level we had 

three winners at the State level.  This is a significant accomplishment for the 

District and staff. 

 

Public & Community Relations 

 Continued participation in CSA1 and CSA 50 meetings on flood control. 

 

 Continue to interact with County, Big Sur Land Trust, and public about District’s 

role in Carmel River Free Project and on Outfall line.  Attended public Notice of 

Preparation meeting for Carmel River Free Project.  This is a project much 

desired by the public but also critical to the sustainability of the District’s 

pipeline across the lagoon. 

 

 We continue to work closely with State Parks – not only to manage our current 

142



relationship but to potentially set the tone of the future at Point Lobos and for 

District infrastructure needs.   Mr. Treanor, is doing a great job of working with 

Steve Bachman from the Monterey office regarding issues that are important to 

CAWD.  This is an example of combining community relations with succession 

training. 

 

 I continue to participate in Integrated Regional Water Management (IRWM) 

meetings.  

 

 I attend the Special District Association Meetings quarterly with Director 

Townsend. 

 

 

143


	01. Board Packet Cover
	02. List of Common Acronyms 02-12-19
	04. Principal Engineer Staff Report - Ordinances 2019-01 -2019-03
	05. Regular Board Meeting Minutes 03-28-19 Final
	06. H&W Bank Statment Review-March 2019
	07. CAWD Cash Receipts & Disbursements - Mar 2019
	08. CAWD Disbursements - Mar 2019
	09. Reclamation Disbursements - Mar 2019
	10. Financial Stmt - Mar 2019
	11.A Collections Jan-Mar 2019 -Staff Report
	11.B Collections Jan- Mar 2019 Map
	12. Safety & Regulatory Compliance Report - Staff Safety Mar 2019 REVISED
	13. Treatment Facility Ops Report-2019 Jan through March
	01.  Jan 2019
	02. Feb 2019
	03. March 2019

	14. Lab & Environmental Compliance-Staff Report March 2019
	15. Capital Projects & Implementation Plan Schedule
	16. Operations Staff Report-March 2019
	17. Maintenance Report -Staff Report Mar 2019
	18. Principal Engineer Staff Report -March 2019
	19.A Auth to Execute Contract with Engine Services Integration (ESi)-Staff Report
	19.B Attachment - ESi Proposal
	ESI fee sched 2019-R0.pdf
	b.  HOURLY RATES
	c.  MINIMUM FEE CHARGES
	d.  EXPENSES
	Expenses are invoiced at actual cost + 10% unless other arrangements are agreed upon.
	Local US Government GSA rates for the Continental United States (CONUS) and State Department Foreign per diem rates are used as a guideline to determine travel expenses. Daily meals and incidentals will be a minimum of $60/day.
	B. TRAVEL TO AND FROM JOB SITE
	C. STANDBY TIME
	D. TERMS
	E. LITIGATION SERVICES
	a. Fees for investigative analysis, document review, discussions, meetings, etc., shall be invoiced at the normal hourly rate.
	b. Fees for court preparation, including deposition preparation, pre-trial conference and non-testimony attendance at a deposition or in court will be invoiced at the normal hourly rate.
	c. Fees for testimony as a witness in a deposition or for testimony at trial shall be invoiced at one and one half (1.5) times the normal hourly rate including overtime charges.
	d. A minimum retainer of 25% of the expected cost of services is required before provision of any services and placed into a client escrow account.  Any balance of retainer shall be returned upon conclusion of services.
	e. Client must sign letter of engagement for services agreeing for payment of services rendered by Engine Systems Integration in full regardless of outcome of litigation, mediation or other settlement.  CLIENT shall agree to hold Engine Systems Integr...
	F. PRO FORMA INVOICE


	19.C Resolution 2019-14 Authorizing Exc Contract with Engine Services Integration - Gas Conditioning System Pre-Design
	20.A Annexation DDA Contract 2019-Staff Report
	20.B DDAProposal_CAWD SOI and Annex2019_April15_SubmittalV1
	20.C RES 2019-15 Annexation Carmel Valley
	21. Acronym Policy and Procedure  04-25-19
	22. PBCSD Regular Board Mtng 03-30-18R
	23.A Pension Plan Meeting 04-15-19 meeting summary
	23.B Hastie 1st Qtr Performance Review & 2nd Qtr Action Plan
	24. Sea Level Rise Committee Meeting Minutes 04-09-19
	25. Lagoon Crossing Repairs Post Activity Report (Information Only)
	26. GM Progress Report Update Qtrly Report Jan - March 2019



